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Dear Fellow Shareholder, May 2007

We set sales records for our company In 2003, 2004, and 2005. At the same time, In those three consecutive years, we
improved our earnings performance. We did no' achieve the results we wanted however in 2006. However we are bringlng
back Improvement In 2007

The year 2006 saw Actlon Products diverted from its core competency of developing high-quality educational products for our
specialty retalling channels, and the financlal resuits were disappointing. After three years of consecutive record sales and
improved earnings we sought to accelerate our (rowth by adding mass to our distribution pipeline to augment the trending
growth we achleved. Now, for 2007 our thirtleth year, we have returned to what has made Action Products one of the most
successful and long lasting companies In the museum and specialty-toy industry.

At mid-year 2005 we were pleased to achieve another consecutive year of our growth. tn 2004 we completed the second of
our major acquisitions, Curiosity Kits®. Our margjins were strong with Gross Profit (on net revenue) over 50%. Qur balance
sheet, ke our prospects, was. and continues to be, very strong. As 2005 progressed we felt our shareholders wanted more
growth from the continued Increase in Internal o ‘organic’ revenue, as well as more, accelerated, growth from our “external’
rmerger and acquisition activities. To facilltate this, In late 2005 the company’s internal operatlons were taken In a new direction,
with the goal of building sales in larger retall outlzts, seeking “hot” or "hit” products. After a perlod of expforation in this area.
we determined that this strategy was not based on the strength of the company’s core competency In developing “quality
brands that educate and entertain” and was not going to deliver the growth and profitabllity we expect for our shareholders.

In summer 2006 declslve corrective actions were taken to return our operating expenses ta previous, more modest and
acceptable levels, In the fall we hired an experienced, speclalty-toy Industry executive as President and Chief Operating Officer
to lead our toy & craft business. It was determired the company’s success was better assured by returning to our base of
brands and trade relatlonships. These aggressive and subsequent corrective changes have positioned our toy & craft business
to experlence Increased revenue, prafitability, ancl shareholder value again In 2007 and beyond. | am happy to report to you
now, aided by the strength of our balance sheet and our many relationships In our Industry, that is exactly what is going on at
Actlon Products International today.

Actions takenin late 2006 have returned your o pany Lo Its core competency of designing, marketing, and growlng specialty
brands to speclalty retall distributlon channels fo+ the growing numbers of consumers who care about what messages for
children are brought Into their homes.

We have been Investing In our Curiosity Kits brand with the objective of growing this brand into a leadership position within
Its robust childrens-craft market segment. We have trimmed our product setection to focus on key brands with the best
prospects for marked expanslon. Our | Dig brand remains the premier excavation experience in the industry with strong
penetration in several market segments. The Space Voyagers brand has seen a strong resurgence in the market as a result of
our focus and efforts to solidify its leadership position.

We have a plan to restore revenue growth and improve earnings In 2007 Our mix of new and long-serving Team Members are
exclted and energized to make that happen.

We are divislonalizing our corporate department from our toy & craft business and exploring ways of structuring certaln
brands as divisions. This would result in a more eff clent corporate structure and allow flexibllity for possible future mergers or
acquisiions. This represents an evolution of our miision over recent years of strictly Incorporating acquired assets Into our core
operations. In this next phase of progress, our toy « craft business, directed primarlly at speciatty retail outlets, will be allowed
to grow and prosper, separate from the overhead cf our corporate division, whiie our corporate division seeks opportunities to
acquire assets that can operate independently, b it complementary, to our oy & craft division. The result shall be greater
revenue growth, earnings and shareholder value.

You can expect great efforts to Improve shareholcdler value, We will achieve this through organic growth, cornersioned by a
renewed dedication to our toy & craft business’ ¢oe markets and brands, as well as expansion of our merger and acquisition
efforts. These initiatives, all directed to restore and Improve the operating performance of our business in 2007 and 2008, are
aggressively underway.

| look forward 1o reporting to you again, and thank you for support of your company.

Sincerely, {
med 3 e ——
Ronald 5. Kaplan

Chalrman

N
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Introductory Comment

7 i LIS

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “Action Products” and “our
company” refer to Action Products International, Inc., a Florida corporation,

Forward Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchanze Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended. When used in this Ann1al Report, the words “believe,” “may,” “should,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “plan”, “continue,” “estimate,” “project” or “intend” and similar expressions identify forward-
looking statements regarding events, conditions and financial trends in connection with our future plan of
operations, business strategy, operating results and financial position. Current shareholders and prospective
investors are cautioned that any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. Such
forward-looking statements by their nature involve substantial risks and uncertainties, certain of which are
beyond our control, and actual results for future periods could differ materially from those discussed in this
Annual Report, depending on a variety of important factors that include, but are not limited to, those discussed in
the section entitted “Management’s Discussion anid Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Factors that May Affect Future Results and Market Price of Qur Stock” and elsewhere in this Report. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s opinions
only as of the date hereof. We undertake no oblig.ition to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to
these forward-looking statements,
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PART 1

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Overview

Action Products International, Inc. (NASDAQ: APII) is a brand-focused, Consumer Products company. We
were originally incorporated, and began our operations, in New York in 1977, and relocated and re-incorporated
in Florida in 1980 as a distributor of education oriented toys, children’s books, stationery and souvenirs,
supplying museum gift shops. In 1997 a new business mo:del was developed and implemented around our toy
business. Today our operations include a brand diversifieq toy & craft company, and a corporate operations
division. Our toy & craft business designs, manufactures and markets a diversified portfolio of educational,
positive and non-viclent brands of toy, craft, gift and acti\lrily products, to various retailing channels such as
independent toy, gift, craft and hobby stores, specialty ret!iil chains, museums, zoos, aquariums, theme parks and
attractions in the United States and throughout the world. |[During the past ten fiscal years, since moving away
from distribution for other manufacturers and publishers, this division developed new proprietary products .
through internal development, licensing and acquisitions. 'Our growth strategy is based on increasing our sales
turnover, penetration in existing channels and diversifying distribution channels, while creating and increasing
brand equity. Our Corporate division seeks new operating entities or assets that will bring accretive value to our
common stock and market capitalization.

Our toy and craft division designs, markets and sells|primarily educational toy product lines under the
umbrella name “Action Products™” (here in after Action Products Toys & Crafts or APT&C). APT&C
marketing and promotion communications focus on our ilidividual brands such as CURIOSITY KITS®, SPACE
VOYAGERS®, CLIMB@TRON™, | DIG DIN OSAURS@I{ WOODKITS™, DROP ZONE EXTREME®,

PLLAY & STORE™, and JAY JAY THE JET PLANE™. Products include premium wooden toys, action figures,
play-sets, activity kits and various other playthings with a strategic emphasis on non-violent and educational and
fun topics such as space, dinosaurs, science, and nature.

In addition to the development of internal brands, our APT&C organization actively pursues prudent
acquisition opportunities and licensing arrangements. In October 2000, we acquired certain assets of Earth Lore
Ltd., an award-winning, privately held Canada-based maKer of popular educational excavation kits for children.
The acquisition provided us with an appropriate product line, and customers that complemented our existing
brands. In December 2001, we acquired a license agreement with thé developers of the PBS children’s television
show Jay Jay The Jet Plane™ to develop and launch our nkw wooden adventure system based on the episodes of
this popular children’s series. We launched this product lihe in the fourth quarter 2002 to popular reception from
toy retailers and consumers.

Our top contributing brands are I Dig Dinosaurs® (and related), Curiosity Kits®, Jay Jay The Jet Plane™,
Space Voyagers®, and Play & Store™. The Curiosity Kits® brand acquired in April 2004 was a significant
contributor to our net sales in 2006, generating approximately $2.0 million. The EarthLore® 1 Dig Dinosaurs®
brand continues to be a strong brand group and contributed over $1.8 million to net sales in 2006. Our best
licensed brand rollout to date is the Jay Jay The Jet Plane}” brand that was introduced in the fourth quarter of
2002. It produced $0.5 million in net sales in 2006 during|a transition to a new production factory. Our other
brands, including Drop Zone Extreme™, Space Voyagers® and Play & Store™, contributed the remaining $3.1
million net sales in 2006.

Recording three consecutive years of revenue increa:l;es and balance sheet improvement through summer
2005, we recruited new more broadly experienced inside zxecutive management to more rapidly expand the
business, and value of our brands, in part by reaching larg'er, national, retail chains. In November 2005 a new
President and Chief Operating Officer was hired. In July 6f 2006, experiencing sales decline, margin erosion, and
increased expenses, our Board accepted the executive’s resignation. This was followed by a cost reduction
program resulting in annualized reductions in operating expense of approximately $600,000.
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Sales for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $7,437,100 compared to $9,480,500 in 2005. This
represents a 22% decrease, which is due to the shift in management strategy and priority, a change of suppliers
for our Jay Jay the Jet Plane™ products and a failed first attempt to reposition and relaunch the acquired Curiosity
Kits® brand.

In October 2006 an operations management executive was retained to improve the performance of the toy
and craft division, first on a consultant basis, APT&C operations were re-aligned with the company’s original
“non-promotional” or “specialty” brand and distribution strategies. In February 2007 the consultant was named
as our new APT&C President and Chief Operating Officer.

Market Opportunity

Consumers are quickly moving to on-line supported product purchases. We are seeking new business
operations to expand our business and better leverage the fixed and variable costs of our corporate structure

The principal markets for our toy and craft division’s products are consumers who purchase through
specialty retailers, toy stores, the toy departimenis of national and regional retail chains, museums, zoos,
aquariums, theme parks and attractions and education stores, and through mail order catalogs and increasingly,
via the Internet. We currently compete primarily in the preschool and elementary school categories in the United
States and some international consumer markets. We believe we are well positioned to grow faster than the
traditional retail markets we participate in and our long-term goal is to capture a significant share of these
markets.

We believe trends are driving increased spending on educational products and redefining markets for our toy
and craft markets. First, parents are concerned adout the education of their children including the important
influence of safe and positive play. This concern is influenced by a number of factors, including the growing
pressures for children to excel in an increasingly knowledge-based society. Second, the increasing emphasis in
the United States and internationally on generating interest in, and encouraging appreciation of, education.
“edutainment” natural sciences and our world. Finally, there has been a noted uptrend in home activities included
in uptrend reports on do-it-yourself and at home or “nesting” activities. We believe that these trends provide
Action Products Toy & Crafis a significant market opportunity.

Several of our product lines which include [ Dig™, Curiosity Kits® and Space Voyagers® appeal to
international customers. We expect our foreign sales to grow in the future as we execute global packaging and
engage new distribution agreements with additicnal foreign distributors.

Our Market Position

Unlike promotional toys, Action Products brands emphasize quality and a healthy solution for consumers
looking for alternatives to the negative influences of less positive play patterns and tend to avoid exploitative,
short-lived aspects of promotional toys. We belizve we are well positioned 1o capitalize on the increased
worldwide emphasis on education, “edutainment” and the trend towards encouraging children’s interest in
positive play and their world surroundings. We believe our innovative products meet this increasingly important
market need.

Our Corporate Strategy

Our Corporate division’s goal is to maximize value for our stakeholders, We are implementing strategies for
corporate expansion through mergers acquisitions and distribution agreements, and strategies to expand our
current toy and craft division. Under new leaderhip, the goal of our current operating division is to become the
leading provider of educational, positive, non-violent toys for ages 2-10 through specialty retailers and selected
chain stores in the U.S. and international markets.



Our Products

Our products consist of toys and activity kits for children packaged and marketed under a diversified
portfolio of brands. This mitigates the risks associated with single brand strategies and builds influence with our
distribution channels as a provider of multiple best sellmgI product lines designed to create long-term sales
streams for our retail dealers and us. We realize not all briinds share equivalent sales, distribution or longevity
potential, however we believe creating brand equity amonlgst a core of diversified brands is important to our long
term success and in the best interest of our shareholders. Following are descriptions of several of our key brands:

Jay Jay The Jet Plane™

Based on the animated series, Jay Jay The Jet Plane, 'Action Products’ Jay Jay the Jet Plane Wooden
Adventure System™ comprised of characters and accessm:'ies, has been designed specifically for children ages 3
to 5, using high quality wood In 2006 we executed a quality improvement program at the factories in China,
yielding an improved level of safety, thoroughly testing e:'1ch wooden character, so that in 2007 we are
announcing that age grading will decrease to 2+ for the 14 wooden characters; more closely reflecting the
identified younger audience of children who are Jay Jay fins. The television reach for Jay Jay The Jet Plane™
moved to the exciting new PBS Kids SPROUT TV network. This new private/public national cable and satellite
network is a more strongly supported joint venture including HIT Entertainment, Comcast, and Sesame
Workshop, providing a new, stronger national platform fcr Jay Jay the Jet Plane. New items for 2007 were
initiated in 2006 with goals to: support the child’s play ofjthe complete system, drive gift giving of the Jay Jay
character, and build products and promotions that enhance the retailer’s presentation in the store.

Curiosity Kits®

Founded in 1988 and acquired by Acticn Products inI 2004, Curiosity Kits has been a continual leader in
children’s arts & crafts. Curiosity Kits contains a variety of craft activity kits, with everything from innovative
jewelry kits to activities with sculpting, drawing and painzing for self-expression. Curiosity Kits focuses on
offering high quality materials, tools, and the information' needed to imagine and then create lasting treasures
while having fun and learning. During 2006 consumer research was conduced by a professional research and
design firm- for a redesign of Curiosity Kits packaging lol be launched in 2007. Curiosity Kits has received
several awards including the Dr Toy’s 100 Best in 2006, Lreanve Child Magazine Top Creative Toy Award and
the Preferred Choice Award Toy of the Year Finalist in 2006 and 2005 and the Oppenheim Toy Portfolio Gold
Award in 1998, 2000, 2001, 2002 and, 2004.

Climb@Tron™

Climb@t1rons are interplanetary robots that climb up, down, around, and even upside down on smooth
surfaces like windows, mirrors and cabinets using poweriul suction cups and vacuum technology and auto
reverse action to keep Climb@Tron™ going even after bimping into barriers, This is a bestseller for Action
Products — in the museums and specialty stores alike.

Kidz Workshop™

Our Kidz Workshop line includes the award winning EZ Build Projects™ that promote confidence-building,
fun-to-assemble where one tool does it all; Kidz Workshop fits the bill for children of ages 7 and up. EZ Build
Projects are winners of Dr. Toy’s 10 Best Socially Respolnsiblc Toys and 2002 100 Best Children’s Products
awards. '

I Dig™ Excavation Adventures

Our 1 Dig™ Excavation Adventures let children imagine they are modern day dinosaur hunters,
archaeologists and treasure seekers. Using steel tools, children dig through dust free “rock” to unearth replica
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dinosaur bones and Egyptian artifacts. This line was expanded in 2006 with the introduction of two I Dig™
Adventures: an Arrowhead and Gold Rush dig. Keeping closely attuned to popular culture, Action Products
introduced the Davey Jones Locker timed to launch with the major pirate film DVD release. Adding more to the
dinosaur theme, a Predator Claw mini dig, and ¢, Prehistoric Sharks dig were introduced in late 2006. New for
2007 are more dinosaurs and other archaeological themes with the core I Dig scientific slant, and in development
are some very imaginative themes with greater emphasis on the fun aspect of the digs.

Space Voyagers®

Our Space Voyagers® line combines vehic. es from the space programs of the past, present, and near future.
This line of astronaut action figures and accessories is designed to appeal 1o both children and parents on two
levels. The products are physically designed, deorated and packaged to appeal to the child’s sense of “cool”
state-of-the-art figure based play, with scenarjos of risk and heroism. The absence of violence and the inherently
educational attributes of space exploration, science and discovery appeal to a wide variety of consumers.

Licensing

In December 200t we signed a licensing agieement with Porchlight Entertainmment for the rights to market
certain toy lines including a wooden adventure system and die cast metal collection under the Jay Jay The Jet
Plane™ name. The popularity of this PBS children’s cartoon made for a very successful launch of the product in the
fourth quarter of 2002. The initial term of the agr::ement expired in December 2004 and was extended at our
election to December 2003. In January 2006 we signed a new licensing agreement that expires in December 2008,

In February 2007 we signed an agreement exiting the 20035 exclusive licensing agreement with Taffy
Entertainment, LLC, to develop and distribute v.rious lines of soft toys based on the new preschool
entertainment series ToddWorld®, The term of the original Agreement was for four years expiring on
February 28, 2009, with a two-year extension through February 28, 2011 subject to our company meeting certain
minimum royalty requirements during the initial term. As a result of poor sales in 2005 and 2006 with no future
expected benefit to our company, Taffy Entertaiament, LLC and our company mutually agreed, in February,
2007, to terminate the 2005 contract for a final settlement amount of $35,000 plus remaining licensed product.

We will continue to selectively seek out appropriate licensing agreements that support our objective to
develop exclusive quality brands with long-term sales growth potential.

Manufacturing, Logistics and Other Operaticns

Our manufacturing and operations strategy is designed to maximize the use of outsourced product
manufacturing services and to concentrate our ir.ternal resources on product development, sales and marketing.
We believe our outsourcing strategy also enhances the scalability of our manufacturing efforts. We use several
OEM contract manufacturers to source components and build finished products to our specifications. We
currently use approximately 49 contract manufacturers located in the United States, Hong Kong and China to
build our finished products. The suppliers are se.ected based on their technical and production capabilities and
are matched to particular products to achieve cout and quality efficiencies.

During 2006 and 2005 our largest single manufacturer supplied 10% and 9% respectively, of our products
and our top three manufacturers combined supplied a total of 25% and 24% respectively. We believe that other
manufacturers are available to us should any of our significant manufacturers, including our largest
manufacturer, be unable or unwilling to continue to manufacture our products for us.

Based on our net sales in 2006, major retail:rs and international distributors took title to approximately 11%
of our products directly from our manufacturing facilities in Asia. However, the majority of our product is
shipped directly to our warehouse in Ocala, Florida and is later shipped to meet the demands of our major U.S.
retailers and our retailers and distributors throughout the U.S. and Canada.
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Marketing, Sales and Advertising

We exhibit our product lines at toy, gift and related industry trade shows. Cur most important trade show is
the American International Toy Fair held in New York C1lty each February. In January 2007 we held our debut
exhibit at the International trade fair of the Craft & Hobbx Association, to positive reviews.

We sell our product lines through a network of mam.lfacturer representative firms and an internat, direct-
sales department. Our direct sales department includes a team that focuses on selling to our original customer
base in the attraction and museum categories. Qur sales dé zpartment also has a customer service team that
manages and supports our retailers and the manufacturer representative firms with marketing collateral, product
information, order processing and selected customer pres¢ntations.

We capitalize on strategic marketing campaigns, p()lf'll of purchase displays and creative package design to
build brand equity and promote product sell-through. We' partner with our retail customers nationally to sponsor |
Dig™ Dinosaurs Play Days, featuring a dinosaur dig site al]owmg groups of children to participate in a live
product demonstration. We also continued our in-store Wloodklts Fixture Program, placing new merchandise
racks in retail outlets throughout the U.S. and Canada. Retailers ordering a prescribed assortment and quantity of
wood kit products are eligible for this program.

Trade advertising remained a core marketing tool in 2006 We placed ads throughout the year in trade
publications including Playthings, The Toy Book and pul:l:catlons of the American Specialty Toy Retailers
Association (ASTRA) ) as well as consumer catalogs pubhshed by retailers an advertising cooperative groups
such as Learning Express, and The Good Toy Group.

Sales and Distribution

We service customers in all fifty U.S. states and the District of Columbia, and export to a number of foreign
countries including the United Kingdom, Spain, Canada and Japan.

Our management focuses its efforts on growing our customer base by increasing our penetration and
presence in new and existing distribution channels. Museum stores and attractions throughout the U.S. and
around the world served as our primary customer base since the inception of our company. While this niche
provided us with a solid foundation for growth, we have s'ucccssfully expanded our distribution to national toy
stores, specialty retailers and other available retail outlets} We have a diversified customer base including some
of the major toy retailers in the U.S. and Canada. Ten large customers accounted for slightly under 34% of our
net sales in 2006. Our largest single customer accounted for slightly less than 11% of our total net sales.

Our sales team seeks to work in conjunction with store buyers from our key retailers to forecast demand for
our products, develop the store floor footprint, secure retail shelf space for our products and agree upon pricing
components, including cooperative advertising allowanceb. The large retail chains generally provide us with a
preliminary forecast of their expected purchases of our products While these and subsequent forecasts are not
contractually binding, they provide important feedback thiat we use in our planning process throughout the year.
We work closely with our key retailers during the year to lstablish and revise our expected demand forecasts and
plan our production and delivery needs accordingly. Mosll retailers issue purchase orders to us, as they need
product. Based on these purchase orders, we prepare shipments for delivery through various methods. For large
retail chains, we generally deliver our products directly to these retailers” warehouses from our third-party
manufacturing factories. For our smaller retailers, we genlzrally ship our products o our warehouse in Florida,
and from there to the retailers’ respective locations. We s¢ll to smaller volume retail stores through a
combination of sales representatives and direct salespeople.

Our distribution strategy is focused on the specialty tl'etail and selected mass-market channels. This includes
selectively differentiating the products we distribute throqgh each channel to address the divergent pricing,
packaging and merchandising requirements of customers in the specialty and mass market channels.

7




International Operations, Sales and Manufa.turing

On September 28, 2000, we formed Action Products Canada, Ltd., a wholly owned Canadian subsidiary, for
the purpose of acquiring substantially all of the assets including, but not limited to, patents, pending patent
applications, trademarks, brand names, customer lists and inventory and assuming certain liabilities of Earth
Lore, Ltd., a Canadian toy manufacturer located in Winnipeg, Manitoba. The primary reason for this transaction
was to obtain Earth Lore’s rights and market share in the “] Dig Dinosaurs” line of toys. These toys are
educational and non-violent and complement our other product offerings. On October 15, 2000, the acquisition
was completed and was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations.
Following completion of the acquisition we implemented a plan to exit certain Canadian production and
distribution activities by integrating the acquired assets and distribution activities into our facility in Florida,
Production of the EarthLore products was successfully transferred at the end of December 2001, to a cost
effective and reliable foreign source with a successful track record manufacturing other products in our line. In
January 2005, Action Products Canada, Ltd. wzs dissolved.

Overall revenues from our international sales represented approximately $0.7 million or 8% of our total
revenues in 2005 and 30.5 million or 6% in 20C6. Over 83% of international sales were made in Canada and the
United Kingdom. Revenues from other international customers still represent a limited percentage of our total
revenues.

Although we have formal international distributor agreements for The United Kingdom, we also sell to other
mternational accounts and distributors on a direct basis.

In general, international sales are subject t3 inherent risks including, but not limited to, transportation delays
and interruptions, political and economic disruptions, the imposition of tariffs and import and export controls,
changes in government policies, cultural difterences affecting product demands and the burdens of complying
with a variety of foreign laws. Our products are produced by approximately 49 outside manufacturing companies
in the U.S_, Hong Kong and China, and are imported directly by us as finished goods, Though we did experience
some delays in shipment in the fall of 2002 due to a prolonged work stoppage at 28 west-coast shipping ports, the
effect was mainly a delay in sales and over the wong term will not have a materially adverse effect on the
business. We do not expect this event to reoccur any time soon, nor do we expect to be impacted by any of the
other risks listed above. There are no assurances that such events will not occur in the future and possibly result
in increases in costs and delays of, or interference with, product deliveries resulting in losses of sales and
goodwill. We experience minimal currency risk because these foreign sourcing transactions are conducted using
U.S. doltars.

The implementation of the General Agreeinent on Tariffs and Trade in 1996 reduced or eliminated customs
duties on many products we import. We believe that the capacity of our facilities and the supply of completed
products we purchase from unaffiliated manufacturers are adequate to meet the foreseeable demand for the
product lines we market. Over a period of time, our reliance on external sources of manufacturing can be shifted
to alternative sources of supply should such chinge be necessary. However, if we were prevented from obtaining
products from a substantial number of our current Far East suppliers due to political, labor or other factors
beyond our control, our operations would be diirupted while alternative sources of products were secured. The
imposition of trade sanctions by the U.S. again:t a class of products imported by us could significantly increase
the cost of importing our products into the ULS.

Competition

Our business is highly competitive and we compete for shelf space with various toy manufacturers,
importers and distributors, such as Leapfrog with $680 million in sales of educational toys; Learning Curve
{which was acquired by RC2 Corporation) witk approximately $130 million in sales to specialty retailers; Jakks
Pacific which keys its growth to acquisitions; a1d a number of smaller companies primarily having single
product lines and often privately owned. Our abitity to compete successfully is based upon our core
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competencies, including our experience in conceptualizing and developing quality toys that are themed as
non-violent and educational, our unique ability to perforni a wide range of specialized “same day” shipment on
most domestic orders and outstanding customer service. Qur manufacturer representative firms and in-house
sales professionals maintain regutar and close contact with direct customers. Our reputation, customer service
and unique brand offerings enable us to build and maintailn customer loyalty.

Product Design & Development

The company works to refresh a redesign of existingjtoy product lines and to develop innovative new toy
product lines. During 2006 and 2005 we spent $64,100 and $69,700 respectively in connection with the design
and development of new products,

Intellectual Property

Our products are sold and protected under trademarks, service marks, trade names and copyrights, and a
number of those products are produced using a patented niethod owned by us. We consider our intellectual
property rights to be important assets in that they provide product recognition and protection. Qur products are
also protected in as many other countries as allowed by trademark, copyright and patent laws to the extent that
such protection is available and meaningful. We currently believe our rights to these properties are adequately
protected, but we cannot assure you that our rights can be[successfully asserted in the future or that such rights
will not be invalidated, circumvented or challenged.

Government Regulation

Our toys are subject to the provisions of the Consum®r Product Safety Act, the Federal Hazardous
Substances Act and the Flammable Fabrics Act, and all of the regulations promulgated hereunder. The Consumer
Product Safety Act and the Federal Hazardous Substances Act enable the Consumer Product Safety Commission
(CPSC) to exclude from the market consumer products tth fail to comply with applicable product safety
regulations or otherwise create a substantial risk of injury] and articles that contain excessive amounts of a
banned hazardous substance. The Flammable Fabrics Actlenables the CPSC to regulate and enforce flammability
standards for fabrics used in consumer products. The CPSC may also require the repurchase by the manufacturer
of articles that are banned. Similar laws exist in some statzs and cities and in various international markets.

Our products are rated according to the American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) safety protocol
adopted by the United States and the EN-71 safety protocol adopted by the European Community. In addition,
we expect to certify our products according to the Japanese Toy Association safety criteria for consumer
products. We also voluntarily comply with certain standaids established by the ASTM. Although compliance
with this much stricter standard is completely at the discrétion of the manufacturer, it is our firm policy that our
toys meet this superior level of safety. We also maintain a quality control program to ensure product safety
compliance with the various federal, state and internationll requirements. Our membership in the Toy
Manufacturer’s Association provides an important resource to remain informed of the latest safety guidelines.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, there can be no assurance that all of our products are or will be hazard free.

Any material product recalt could have an adverse effect on us, depending on the product, and could affect sales
of our other products.

Personnel

As of December 31, 2006, we had 30 employees worldwide, including one executive officer, four sales and
customer suppott personnel, seven marketing and productI development personnel, nine distribution personnel
and nine administrative and procurement personnel. We affer our employees a benefits package that includes
health and life insurance plans, a 401(k) plan and an empl‘oyee—contributed IRC Section 125 health plan.
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Employees are required to sign a non-compete agreement prohibiting direct competition with us for at least a
one-year period following termination of their e:nployment. None of our employees are represented by a labor
union or are subject to a collective bargaining agreement.

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Qur corporate headquarters are located in Cirlando, Florida, where we lease a 6,000 square foot suite in a
business district near downtown Orlando, staffed by executive, sales, marketing, importing and graphics
personnel. We are currently on a short-term sublease that expires July 12, 2007. We intend to extend the lease for
an additional 12 months through July 2008. We believe the lease rate will remain the same.

In addition, we own a distribution facility in Ocala, Florida. The Ocala facility, which we have owned for
over fifteen years and houses our distribution ceater, is comprised of a 35,000 square foot mixed use building and
2.5 acres of land, This facility, which is situaled in an industrial park comprised of similar facilities, is expected
to be sufficient to meet our current warehousing and distribution needs.

The property is encumbered by a mortgage the principal balance of which, as of December 31, 2006, was
$41,100 and may be prepaid at any time without penalty. During 2005 we prepaid $315,100 of the outstanding
principal. The mortgage bears interest at 7.5%6 p2r annum and is due in 120 monthly payments of principal and
interest of approximately $6,100 based on a 2(-vear amortization.

The mortgage is collateralized by real estat: and improvements and contains certain restrictive covenants,
which provide that, among other things, we maintain a minimum working capital and net worth, debt service
coverage and a maximum debt to net worth ratic. At December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with all
covenants.

There are no current plans to rerovate or e»,pand the facility. We follow a course of regular repair and
maintenance to the structure and fixtures that kezp the facility in good operating condition. In addition we
maintain sufficient insurance to effect the replacement or repair of the facility.

In April 2006, we entered into a one year lease for 15,200 square foot of temporary storage in Ocala
primarily for bulky Curiosity Kits product.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In November 2006, a final judgment was entered in the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial District in
Alachua county, Florida, in the amount of $5.1 million (bearing annual interest at 9%) in a civil lawsuit against
Kid Galaxy, Inc of Manchester, NH, and its parent company Lung Cheong International Holdings Ltd., and
Timothy L.Young. The defendant has filed notice of an appeal and a bond to cover the verdict amount plus nine
percent interest for two years. Our company’s management cannot predict the outcome of any ruling by the
appellate court nor when it will occur.

We do not believe there are any pending or threatened legal proceedings that, if adversely determined,
would have a material adverse effect on us.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006.
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PART I1
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “APIL” The following table
represents the range of the high and the low bid quotations for each fiscal quarter for the last two fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2006. These quotations represent prices between dealers, may not include retail
mark-ups, markdowns or commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Fiscal Quarter Ended Low Egl
March 31, 2005 .. it e e e $2.63 $3.88
JUNE 30, 2005 . ot e e e $275 $4.00
September 30,2005 . . .. ... $283 $3.34
December 31, 2005 . . i e e $1.98 $3.22
MaArch 31, 2006 .. e e $2.10 $2.80
JUNE 30, 2006 . . .t e e $1.81 $2.40
September 30, 2006 .. .. ... e $1.35  $2.14
December 31, 2006 ..ottt e e $1.46 $3.10

On March 23, 2007, the closing price of our common stock was $1.64 and we had approximately 1,400
record owners of our common stock.

Dividends and Dividend Policy

We previously distributed shares of common stock and warrants as dividends, but have not paid any cash
dividends on our common stock during the last two fiscal years. We currently intend to retain the majority of
future earnings for reinvestment in our business. Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will be dependent on our financial condition, results of operations,
capital requirements and other relevant factors.

On April 24, 2003 we announced a warrant distribution to all shareholders of record as of June 12, 2003,
Shareholders were issued one warrant for each share of common stock owned as of the record date. Each warrant
entitles the holder to purchase one common share at an exercise price of $2.00. On June 6, 2006, the company’s
Board of Directors extended the expiration date of the warrants from June 9, 2006 to December 31, 2010. All
other terms of the warrants remain the same. As of December 31, 2006 approximately 3,272,100 warrants had
been issued and 1,566,700 had been exercised.

On October 29, 2004 we announced a warrant distribution to al! shareholders of record as of January 7,
2005. Shareholders were issued one warrant for each share of common stock owned as of the record date. Each
warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share at exercise prices of $3.00 and $3.50 and expired
January 6, 2006. As of the expiration date, approximately 4,636,900 warrants had been issued, total warrants
exercised were 466,800.

Cn October 28, 2005 we announced a warrant distribution to all shareholders of record as of January 18,
2006, Shareholders were issued one warrant for each share of common stock owned as of the record date. Each
warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share at exercise prices of $3.25 and $3.75. On January 31,
2007, the company’s Board of Directors extended the expiration dates of the warrants from January 31, 2007 to
January 31, 2008 at $3.25 per share and from February 1, 2008 to December 31, 2010 at $3.75 per share.
Approximately 5,197,200 warrants were distributed upon effectiveness of a registration statement filed on
July 20, 2006.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There were no issuances or sales of our securities by us during the fourth quarter of 2006 that were not
registered under the Securities Act.




Repurchase of Securities

On March 24, 2004, our Board of Directors authorized effective immediately, a program to repurchase up to
150,000 of our outstanding common shares. Resurchases may be made by us from time to time in the open
market at prevailing prices, in either block purchases or in privately negotiated transactions. The share
repurchase program expired March 24, 2007, three years from the date of authorization. As of December 31,
2006 we repurchased 30,701 of our common shares and 119,299 remain available under the plan. As of
March 24, 2007, we repurchased a total of 3(},701 of our common shares under the program.

Repurchases of Common Shares

Maximum number {or
Averpge price Total number of common approximate dollar value) of
Total numbe:" of paid per - shares purchased as part common shares that may yet

common shares commeon of publicly announced  be purchased under the plans
purchased share plans or programs or programs
October 1, 2006 — October 31, 2006 . . .. .. — §— — 119,799
November 1, 2006 - November 30, 2006 .. 500 $1.63 500 119,209
December |, 2006 — December 31, 2006 . . . — $— — 119,299
Total L. 500 $1.83 500 119.299

ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements included in Item 7 in this Annual Report.
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When used in conjunction in the following discussiong, the words “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties, which could cavse results to differ materially from those projected,
including, but not limited to, those set forth in “Factors that May Affect Future Results and Market Price of Qur
Stock” of this ltem 6.

General Overview

In 1997, we shifted our focus from being a distributor of other manufacturers’ toys, gifts, souvenirs,
promotional premiums and published products tcwards the development, establishment and distribution of our own
proprietary brands and products. Our strategy is to continue broadening our collection of brands through internal
development, licensing and acquisitions. Proprietary brands allow us to better control costs, maintain margins and
secure favorable relationships with the most proriinent sales and retail organizations in the toy industry.

We develop brands by introducing new products based on market opportunities and extending our strongest
product lines. In 2001, we developed a broad lir e of themed educational toys with the name Play & Store™ to
fill, what we believe to be, an overlooked niche in the specialty toy industry and we improved the line further
with new products in 2002. We introduced a Wooden Adventure System™ with the Jay Jay The Jet Plane™
name under a license agreement with Porchlight Entertainment. Our product development objective is to develop
a solid diversified portfolio of proprietary brands to drive top line revenues.

Historicaily, our principal source of revenues has been the sale of products to retailers. We anticipate this
will continue for the foreseeable future. However, we intend to augment this with revenue generating licensing
agreements for our proprietary brands and trademarks. The competition and consolidation taking place in the
retail sector will continue 1o present challenges. However, we believe the opportunities for increased penetration
of existing channels, continued diversification into new distribution channels and interactive markets will allow
us to achieve our growth objectives.
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In 2006, our Board of Directors demanded changes to our company to address the losses we continue to
incur, the lack of progress in expanding operations and the creation of economies of scale necessary to be a
profitable public company. The significant changes are:

«  Management Restructuring - In the third quarter of 2006, we engaged in a restructuring of the
management of our toy and craft business, which included the appointment in 2007 of a President and
Chief Operating Officer for the division, Richard Malagodi, an experienced executive in the consumer
products industry. We intend to continue to look at ways o improve our management, operations and
sales personnel.

«  Cost Reduction - In the third quarter of 2006, we implemented a cost reduction initiative to bring
current operating costs in line with actual performance and take advantage of changes available for
increasing operational efficiency.

»  Organic Business Development - We are working 10 expand our award-winning, best-selling, product
lines and pursue new distribution channels. Through cost effective measures, such as carly delivery of
new sales materials, we are seeking to reinvigorate shelf presence and retail sates of our key product
lines and further build brand equity.

o Pursue Acquisitions — We are pursuing acquisition opportunities, both within and outside our toy and
craft business. We believe that we can increase revenues and generate economies of scale through
acquisitions of complimentary assets. We are also considering products outside our core products and
increase revenue by leveraging our existing sales and distribution channels.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. As such, management is required to make certain estimates, judgments
and assumptions that they believe are reasonable based on the information available. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented. The significant accounting policies which
management believes are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial
results include revenue recognition, inventory valuation, intangible assets and stock-based compensation.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue upon shipment of our products provided there are no significant post-delivery
obligations to the customer and collection is reasonably assured. This generally occurs upon shipment, either
from our U.S. distribution facility or directly from our third-party manufacturers. Net sales represent gross sales
less negotiated price allowances based primarily on volume purchasing levels and actual allowances for defective
items.

Accounts Receivable Valuation

Accounts receivable result from the sale of our products at sales prices, net of estimated sales returns and
other allowances. We estimate an allowance for doubtful accounts based on a specific identification basis and
additional allowances based on historical collections experience. Accounts are considered past due when
outstanding beyond the stated payment terms. We will not write-off any account receivable until all reasonable
means of collection have been exhausted and collection does not appear probable.

Inventory Valuation

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost {determined by the first-in, first-out method) or market. Based upon
a consideration of quantities on hand, actual and anticipated sales volume, anticipated product selling price and
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product lines planned to be discontinued; slow-moving and obsolete inventory is written down to its estimated
net realizable value. Failure to accurately predii:t and respond to consumer demand could result in us under
producing popular items or overproducing less popular items. Management estimates are monitored on a
quarterly basis and a further adjustment to reduce inventory to its net realizable value is recorded when deemed
necessary.

Intangible Assets

The cost of acquired companies in excess of the fair value of net assets at acquisition date is recorded as
“goodwill,” and through December 2001 was amortized over a 15-year period on a straight-line basis.
Subsequent to December 2001, goodwill is no longer amortized but, instead, is tested at least annually for
impairment, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. Management believes,
based on the testing performed during 2006, that goodwill is not impaired.

We assess the recoverability of other intangible assets if facts and circumstances suggest that their carrying
amount may have been impaired. In making its assessment, we give consideration to the undiscounted cash flows
from the use of such assets, the estimated fair value of such assets, and other factors that may affect the
recoverability of such assets. If such an assessnient indicates that the carrying value of intangible assets may not
be recoverable, the carrying value of intangible assets is reduced.

Stock-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS Nc. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” using the modified prospective
method. This Statement is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and
supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” For periods ended prior to
January 1, 2006, pursuant to APB Opinion No. 25, no stock-based employee compensation expense was
recognized by us and, under the modified prosg ective method pursuant to SFAS No. 123R, results for the prior
periods have not been restated. Operating loss for the year ended December 31, 2006 includes $121,000 in
compensation expense for stock options as a re;:ult of our adoption of SFAS No. 123R, which negatively
impacted diluted earnings per share from continming operations by $0.02. Results for the year ended
December 31, 2005 do not include compensation expense for stock options. The following table sets forth the
proforma results for the year ended December 71, 2005, which includes compensation for stock options:

2005
Net (loss) Asreported ........................... $ (21,200)
Proforma............................. $(147,900)
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Results of Operations

The following should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes
thereto included elsewhere herein. The following table sets forth, as a percentage of sales, certain items
appearing in our consolidated statements of operations.

2006 2005
Nt SalES . .ttt ittt e et e e 100.0% 100.0%
oSt Of BaleS . oottt e e 5711% 47.1%
Gross Profit .. ..o o e e e 429% 529%
Selling EXPENSE L\ . v v vt ee e ettt 353% 24.9%
General & Administrative Expense . ........ i 429% 28.1%
Total Operating EXPEnse . . ... .ovuuunrrneee ettty 782% 53.0%
(LosS) fTOm OPerations ... .. .vvvumnr s iniaae e iannaane s aaaroanaaaeesns (35.3%) (0.2%)
Other InCome/(EXPENSE) . ..ot v i iie it iiiian i iaiasa st raaa s (1.2%) (0.0%)
Loss Before Benefit (Provision) From Income Taxes ......................... (36.5%) (0.2%)
N 3, €= U O P 0.0% 0.0%
NEE (088 ) ittt ettt et s e et e e aa e (36.5%) (0.2%)

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared With Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net sales decreased by $2,043,400 or 21.6% to $7,437,100 in fiscal 2006 from $9,480,500 in fiscal 2005.
Management attributes the 22% decrease to a decline in sales to:

¢ Selected mass market accounts of $560,000

«  Reduced sales of our Jay Jay line in specialty (non-toy), independent toy stores and internet accounts of
$660,000 due to a supplier change and product repositioning

+  Reduced demand for our Curiosity Kits products in specialty (non toy), independent toy store and
internet accounts of $530,000 associated with changes in packaging and marketing strategy

Gross profit decreased by $1,818,400 or 36.3% to $3,193,300 in fiscal 2006 from $5,011,700 in fiscal
2005. As a percentage of sales, gross profit decreased to 42.9% in fiscal 2006, compared to 52.9% in fiscal 2005.
The decrease in gross profit is attributable principally to the decrease in sales discussed above. The decrease in
gross profit percentage was attributable to fixed depreciation and amortization of molds and tooling and product
development costs, respectively, and increases in raw material costs, reduced selling prices on certain of our Jay
Jay and Curiosity Kits lines and an increase in reserves for slower moving inventory.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses were $5,821,800 and $5,030,000 in fiscal 2006 and
2005, respectively. The $791,800 or 15.7% increase in SG&A expenses is due primarily to the following:
e« Doubtful accounts expense of $236,900
=  Non-cash charges for employee stock options of $121,000 as a result of adopting SFAS 123R
+  Increase in brand licensing of $133,300 due primarily to license fees on our ToddWorld® brand
+  Increase in professional services of $118,400 due primarily to increases in legal and accounting fees.

+  Compensation increase of $102,100 due principaily to staffing additions in fulfillment and executive
managemert

+  Travel of $84,600 as a result of increased travel to Asia for product development, and additional travel
for international toy fairs and sales and marketing activities and temporary lodging for two executives.

+  Increase in lease expense of $78,200 due primarily to temporary warehouse space and equipment
needed for stocking Curiosity Kits product
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Interest expense related to current and long-term debt was $62,900 and $76,500 in fiscal 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The $13,600 decrease is due prim:rily to reductions in our warehouse mortgage.

Other income/(expense) was ($23,800) ard $73,600 in fiscal 2006 and 2005 respectively. The decrease
was primarily attributable to increased in invest ment losses.

Net (Loss) in fiscal 2006, as a result of the foregoing, net loss was $2,715,200 or $0.52 per share compared
to a net loss of $21,200 or $0.00 per share in fis:al 2005.

Liguidity and Capital Resources
As of December 31, 2006, current assets were $4,249,200 compared to current liabilities of $2,582,900 for a
current ratio of approximately 1.6 to | comparexl to 3.3 1o 1 as of December 31, 2005.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $369,900 and $223,400 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, representing an increase of $146,500.

As of December 31, 2006, we had working capital of $1,666,300 as compared to $4,054,300 at
December 31, 2005 representing a decrease of $2,388,000.

We had net cash flows provided by operations of $3,900 in fiscal 2006 compared to net cash flows used in
operations of $868.100 in fiscal 2003, representing an increase of $872,000. Principal sources of liquidity from
operating activities for the fiscal year 2006 were:

*  adecrease of $472,200 in accounts rec eivable due primarily improved collections,
*  anet reduction in investment securitie; of $340,800 due primarily to planned liquidation of securities

*  anincrease in accounts payable $299,900 due primarily to the lengthening of payment terms with
several of our vendors,

*  adecrease of $216,500 in inventory resulting from prudent inveatory purchase practices,

* adecrecase in prepaid expenses of $21:,000 due primarily to reductions in prepaid license fees and
prepaid marketing and promotional materials, and

*  anincrease in accrued expenses of $107,100 due primarily to an increase in accrued inventory.
The principal use of cash from operating activities for the fiscal year 2006 was the net loss of $2,715,200.

Principal sources of cash from investing anl financing activities during fiscal 2006 were:

* et proceeds from the exercise of comimon stock options and warrants of $26,500 related principally to
public warrants issued in June 2004, and

= borrowings under our line of credit of $275,500.,

Principal uses of cash from investing and fiaancing activities during fiscal 2006 were:

*  repayment of mortgage principal of $67,300

«  property and equipment acquisitions o7 $91,200, and

«  purchase of treasury stock for $900,

At December 31, 2006, we had $1,178,400 of borrowings under our line of credit (“the Revolver”), an

increase of $275,500 from $902,900 as of December 31, 2005. Under the credit agreement for the Revolver, we
are subject to financial covenants related to the maintenance of certain asset balances and financiai ratios. We are
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not in compliance with all covenants as of December 31, 2006. The borrowing limit under the Revolver is
$2,500,000. The eligible borrowing balance at December 31, 2006 was $2,500,000. Interest is payable monthly
based on a variable rate equal to Prime rate (8.25% as of December 31, 2006) plus 150 basis points. The
Revolver was entered into in September 2005 and initially matured on August 30, 2006. The facility was
extended through March 31, 2007. On March 22, 2007, the lender agreed to forebear from requiring payment of
the facility until April 30, 2007. We are reviewing options with vartous financial institutions. At December 31,
2006 we were not in compliance with the debt service coverage covenant.

We extend credit to our customers, generally on terms that require payment within 30 days. Some customers
participate in an accounts receivable extended payment terms program, pursuant to which payments for products
are delayed for up to 120 days, We belicve this is consistent with normal practices in the industry.

During 2006, we recorded depreciation and amortization of approximately $403,100 compared to $343,000
for fiscal 2005. The increase in depreciation and amortization is mainly attributable increased amortization of
product development costs, In addition, we invested $91,200 and $204,800 in the acquisition of new property and
equipment in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2006 decreased by $2,568,600 to $4,167,500 compared to $6,736,100
at December 31, 2005, due primarily to the 2006 net loss of $2,715,200.

Provided we renew, replace or extend our Revolver, we believe that currently available cash and cash
equivalents, liquid investments, cash flows from operations and current credit facilities will be sufficient to fund
our operations for at teast the next 12 months. However, our actual experience may differ from these
expectations, Factors that may lead to a difference include, but are not limited to, the matters discussed as well as
future evenis that might have the effect of reducing our available cash balance (such as unexpected material
operating losses or increased capital or other expenditures as well as increases in inventory or accounts
receivable)} or future events that may reduce or eliminate the availability of external financing resources. Qur
failure to comply with covenants in our credit agreements could result in significant negative consequences.

The following table summarizes our outstanding borrowings and long-term contractual obligations at
December 31, 2006, and the effects these obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in
future periods,

Payments Due by Period
January 1, 2008 to  January 1, 2008 to
On or prior December 31, December 31,
Contractual Obligations Total to 12/31/07 2008 2010
CreditFacility ................ .. ... ...... $1,178,400 $1,178,400 $— 5
Morgage ... 41,100 41,100 — —
Total Contractual Cash Obligations ........... $1,219,500 $1,219.500 $— —

We anticipate a continued improvement in our working capital position resulting from the exercise of
common stock warrants and improved operating results. '

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no material off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are likely to have, a current or future
material effect on us.

Seasonality and Quarterly Results of Operations

Cur business is subject to significant seasonal fluctuations. Historically the substantial majority of our net
sales and net income are realized during the third and forth calendar quarters. However, our quarterly results of
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operations have fluctuated significantly in the past, and can be expected to continue to fluctuate significantly in
the future, as a result of many factors, includiag: seasonal influences on our sales, such as:

»  the holiday shopping season;
«  unpredictable consumer preferences and spending trends;
« the need to increase inventories in advance of our primary selling season; and

*  timing of introductions of new products.

The foliowing table sets forth selected unaudited quarterly statements of operations information for 2006
and 2005. The unaudited quarterly information includes atl normal recurring adjustments that management
considers necessary for a fair presentation of 1he information shown. During the last two years net losses
occurred for the first six months when less thiin 45 percent of our sales are recognized. Losses continued in the
second six months of 2006 as a result of the problems experienced throughout the year with the Jay Jay the Jet
Plane and Curiosity Kits lines. Profitability in the second six months of 2005 improved as a result of moderate
sales growth, tight controls on gross margins :ind operating costs. We expect that we will continue to incur losses
during the first six months of each year for thi: foreseeable future. Because of the seasonality of our business and
other factors, results for any interim period ar: not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for
the full fiscal year.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
Netsales .............0ciiviiinn.n. $1,635,700 $1,635,000 $2,056,100 $ 2,110,300 $ 7,437,100
Grossprofit .......ciiivieniirnnn 787,500 822,800 932,800 650,200 3,193,300
Income (loss) from Operations .. ......., (633,900) (786,700)  (305,700) (902,200) (2,628,500}
Netincome (loss) .................... $ (585,8000 $ (799,300) $ (229,800) $(1,100,300) $(2,715,200)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
Netsales ......... e, $1,955,600 $1,911,200 $2,581,800 $3,031,900 $9,480,500
Grossprofit ............ ... ... ... ... 1,087,000 1,065,100 1,317,100 1,542,500 5,011,700
Income (loss) from Operations ........... (29,700) (61,100) 83,500 (11,000} (18,300)
Netincome (loss} ..............cvvuv.. $ (13,0000 $ (78,0000 $§ 111,500 § (41,700) $ (21,200)

Factors that May Affect Future Results and Market Price of OQur Stock

We face a number of substantial risks. Qur business, financial condition or results of operations could be
harmed by any of these risks. The trading price of our common shares could decline due to any of these risks, and
they should be considered in connection with the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form
10-KSB.

Factors associated with our business

If we incur net losses, our ability to satiz:fy our cash requirements may be more difficult. We incurred net
losses of approximately $2.7 million and $0.1 million in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 respectively. If we fail to
generate operating income and net income, w: could have difficulty meeting our working capital requirements.

We have substantial cash requirements and may require additional sources of funds. Additional sources
of funds may not be available or available on reasonable terms. We have substantial cash requirements in
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connection with our operations and debt service obligations. In addition, new product development, which is key
to the success of our business, is cash intensive. If the cash we generate from our operations or from our other
sources is not available when needed or is insufficient to satisfy our requirements, we may require additional
sources of funds. Our revolving line of credit (the “Revolver”) expires and is due March 31, 2007. On March 22,
2007, the lender agreed to forebear from requiring payment of the Revolver until April 30, 2007, We are also
looking at alternatives to replace the Revolver. We cannot assure you that we will be able to extend or replace the
Revolver, or that additional sources of funds would be available or available on reasonable terms. If we do not
extend or replace the Revolver, and generate sufficient amounts of capital to meet our cash requirements at the
times and on the terms required by us, our business will be adversely affected.

Changing consumer preferences may negatively impact our product lines. As a result of changing
consumer preferences, many toys are successfully marketed for only one or two years, if at all. We cannot assure
you that any of our current successful products or product lines will continue to be popular with consumers for
any stgnificant period of time, or that new products and product lines will achieve an acceptable degree of market
acceptance, or that if such acceptance is achieved, it will be maintained for any significant period of time. Our
success is dependent upon our ability to enhance existing product lines and develop new products and product
lines. The failure of our new products and product lines to achieve and sustain market acceptance and to produce
acceptable margins could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our customers’ inventory management systems may cause us to produce excess inventory that may
become obsolete and increase our inventory carrying costs. Most of our largest retail customers utilize an
inventory management system to track sales of products and rely on reorders being rapidly filled by us and other
suppliers, rather than maintaining large product inventories. These types of systems put pressure on suppliers like
us to promptly fill customer orders and therefore shift some of the inventory risk from the retailer to the
suppliers. Production of excess inventory by us to meet anticipated retailer demand could result in our carrying
obsolete inventory and increasing our inventory carrying costs. Similarly, if we fail to predict consumer demand
for a product, we may not be able to deliver an adequate supply of products on a timely basis and will, as a result,
lose sales opportunities.

There are risks related to our acquisition strategy. We may, from time to time, evaluate and pursue
acquisition opportunities on terms management considers favorable. A successful acquisition involves an
assessment of the business condition and prospects of the acquisition target, which includes factors beyond our
control. This assessment is necessarily inexact and its accuracy is inherently uncertain. In connection with such an
assessment, we perform a review we believe to be generally consistent with industry practices. This review,
however, will not reveal all existing or potential problems, nor will it permit us to become sufficiently familiar with
the acquisition target to assess fully its deficiencies. We cannot assure you that any such acquisition would be
successful or that the operations of the acquisition target could be successfully integrated with our operations. Any
unsuccessful acquisition could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We are dependent on contracts with manufacturers, maost of which are short-term. We conduct
substantially all of our manufacturing operations through contract manufacturers, many of which are located in
the People’s Republic of China (PRC) and Hong Kong. We generally do not have long-term coniracts with our
manufacturers, Forgign manufacturing is subject to a number of risks including, but not limited to:

*  transportation delays and interruptions,

*  political and economic disruptions,

*  the impositions of tariffs and import and export controls, and

*  changes in governmental policies.

While we have not experienced any material adverse effects due to such risks to dare, we cannot assure you

that such events will not occur in the future and possibly result in increases in costs and delays of, or
interferences with, product deliveries resulting in losses of sales and goodwill.
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We are dependent on intellectual property rights and cannot ensure that we will be able to successfully
protect such rights. We rely on a combination of trademark, copyright, patent and other proprietary rights laws
to protect our rights to valuable intellectual property related to our brands. We also rely on license and other
agreements to establish ownership rights and 1o maintain confidentiality. We cannot assure you that such
intellectual property rights can be successfully asserted in the future or that they will not be invalidated,
circumvented or challenged. In addition, laws. of certain foreign countries in which our products are sold, or in
which we operate, do not protect intellectual -yroperty rights to the same extent as the laws of the U.S. The failure
to protect our proprietary information and any successful intellectual property challenges or infringement
proceedings against us could have a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

There are specific risks associated with international sales. We have sold products to customers
internationally in countries including the Uniied Kingdom, Canada, Korea, Japan, Spain, Australia and New
Zealand. We expect to augment our presence in international markets. Accordingly, our business, and our ability
to expand our operations internationally, is subject to various risks inherent in international business activities.
We may have difficulty in safeguarding our izvtellectual property in countries where intellectual property laws are
not well developed or are poorly enforced. Gi:neral economic conditions and political conditions of various
countries may be subject to severe fluctuations at any time. Such fluctuations could hinder our performance
under contracts in those countries or could hider our ability to collect for product and services delivered in those
countries. However, we generally sell to international customers under terms requiring letters of credit or
payment in advance. Unexpected changes in Joreign regulatory requirements could also make it difficult or too
costly for us to conduct business internationaily.

In addition, although we have normally been successful in stipulating that our foreign customers pay in U.S.
dollars, any payment provisions involving foreign currencies may result in less revenue than expected due to
foreign currency rate fluctuations. Other risks. associated with international operations include;

¢ import and export licensing requirements,

. trade restrictions,

+  changes in taniff rates,

= overlapping tax structures,

*  transportation delays,

*  currency fluctuations,

+  potentially adverse tax consequences, and

«  compliance with a variety of foreign laws and regulations.

Any of the foregoing factors could have a material adverse effect on our ability to expand our international
sales. Increased exposure to international markets creates new areas with which we may not be familiar and

could place us in competition with new vendors. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in our efforts to
compete in these international markets.

We face potential ligbility from produci safety claims. Products that have been or may be developed or sold
by us may expose us to potential liability froin personal injury or property damage claims by end-users of such
products. We have never been and are not prosently a defendant in any product liability lawsuit; however, we
cannot assure you that such a suit will not be brought against us in the future. We currently maintain product
liability insurance coverage in the amount of $1.0 million per occurrence, with a $2.0 million excess umbrella
policy. We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain such coverage or obtain additional coverage on
acceptable terms, or that such insurance will provide adeguate coverage against all potential claims, Moreover,
even if we maintain adequate insurance, any successful claim could materially and adversely affect our
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reputation and prospects, and divert management's time and attention. The U.S. Consumer Products Safety
Commission, or CPSC, has the authority under certain federal laws and regulations to protect consumers from
hazardous goods. The CPSC may exclude from the market goods it determines are hazardous, and may require a
manufacturer to repurchase such goods under certain circumstances. Some state, local and foreign governments
have similar laws and regulations. In the event that such laws or regulations change or we are found in the future
to have violated any such law or regulation, the sale of the relevant product could be prohibited and we could be
required to repurchase such products.

We may become subject to burdensome governmental regulation. In the U.S., we are subject to the
provisions of, among other laws, the Federal Consumer Product Safety Act and the Federal Hazardous
Substances Act. These acts empower the CPSC to protect the public against unreasonable risks of injury
associated with consumer products, including toys and other articles. The CPSC has the authority to exclude
from the market articles, which are found to be hazardous and can require a manufacturer to repair or repurchase
such toys under certain circumstances. Any such determination by the CPSC is subject to court review.
Violations of these acts may also result in civil and criminal penalties. Similar laws exist in some states and cities
in the U.S. and in many jurisdictions throughout the world. We maintain a quality control program, including the
retention of independent testing laboratories, to ensure compliance with applicable laws. We believe we are
currently in substantial compliance with these laws. In general, we have not experienced difficulty complying
with such regulations, and compliance has not had an adverse effect on our business.

There are risks related to our customers’ payment terms. The majority of our customers receive trade
terms to which payments for products are delayed for up to 30 days and some receive up to 120 days, pursuant to
various sales promotion programs. The insolvency or business failure of one or more of our customers with large
accounts receivable could have a material adverse affect on our future sales.

Secasonality may affect our results of operations. Our sales have historically been seasonal in nature,
reflecting peak sales in the second six months of the year and slower sales in the first six months.

Factors associated with investing in us

We expect our stock price fo be volatile. The market price of the shares of our common stock has been, and
will likely continue to be, subject to wide fluctuations in response to several factors, such as

s actual or anticipated variations in our results of operations,
= new services or product introductions by us or our competitors,
«  changes in financial estimates by securities analysts, and

¢ conditions and trends in the consumer toy indusiry.

The stock markets generally, and the Nasdaq Capital Market in particular, have experienced extreme price
and volume fluctuations that have particularly affected the market prices of equity securities of many companies
and that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. These
market fluctuations, as well as general economic, political and market conditions such as recessions, interest rates
or international currency fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Our officers and directors control a large percentage of outstanding stock and may be able to exercise
significant control. Our current officers and directors beneficially own approximately 30% of our common stock
on a fully diluted basis. As a result, current management will be able to exercise significant influence over all
matters requiring shareholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate
transactions.

We have implemented anti-takeover defenses. Certain provisions of our articles of incorporation and
bylaws may be deemed to have anti-takeover effects and may delay, defer or prevent a take-over attempt of us.
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We are subject to the “affiliated transactions’ and “control share acquisition” provisions of the Florida Business
Corporation Act. These provistons require, subject to certain exceptions, that an “affiliated transaction” be
approved by the holders of two-thirds of the voting shares other than those beneficially owned by an “interested
shareholder” or by a majority of disinterested directors. Voting rights must also be conferred on “control shares”
acquired in specific control share acquisitions. Lastly, our articles of incorporation authorize the issuance of up to
10,000,000 shares of preferred stock with such rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by
our board, of which all shares remain without designation and available for issuance. We include such preferred
stock in our capitalization in order to enhance our financial flexibility. However, the issuance of large blocks of
preferred stock may have a dilutive effect with respect to existing helders of our common stock.

We depend on key personnel, Our success largely depends on a number of key employees. The loss of
services of one or more of these employees could have a material adverse effect on our business. We are
especially dependent upon the efforts and abilities of certain of our sentor management, particularly Ronald S.
Kaplan, our Chief Executive Officer and Richard Malagodi, our President. Currently, we do not maintain key
man [ife insurance on Mr. Kaplan and Mr. Malagodi or any other executive officer. We believe that our future
success will also depend, in part, upon our ability to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel. We cannot
assure you, however, that we will be successful in attracting and retaining such personnel.

We currently do not intend to pay cash dividends. We expect that we will retain a major portion of
available earnings generated by our operatior s for the development and growth of our business.

The issuance of additional shares of common stock or the exercise of outstanding options and warrants
will dilute the interests of our shareholders. As of March 23, 2007, we had 5,231,500 shares of our common
stock outstanding. Our board has the ability, “without further sharcholder approval, to issue up to 9,764,500
additional shares of common stock. Such isscance may result in a reduction of the book value or market price of
our outstanding common shares. Issuance of additional commeon stock will reduce the proportionate ownership
and voting power of the then existing sharcholders. Further, if all our outstanding options and warrants are
exercised, we will have approximately 7,505,300 shares outstanding. Thus, the percentage of shares owned by all
existing shareholders wilt be reduced proportionately as options and warrants are exercised. The table below
summarizes our current outstanding common shares, options and warrants:

Number of
Number of Common Shares
Common underlying
Common Shares, Options and Warrants Shares Options and Warrants Total
Common shares issued as of
March 23, 2007 issued ........ ... ..l 5,435,000 — 5,435,000
less treasury shares . ...... {203,500) — (203,500}
Options outstanding as of
March 23, 2007 currently exercisable ... ... — 227,000 227,000
currently unexercisable . . .. — 28,000 28,000
Warrants outstanding as of
March 23, 2007 (all warrants
are currently exercisable) public warrants .......... — 6,902,600 6,902,605
TOTAL .. o e 5,231,500 7,157,600 12,389,100

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements required by this. item are set forth on pages F-1 to F-17 and are incorporated herein
by this reference.
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ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM BA.CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated
to our management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure based closely on the definition of “disclosure controls and
procedures” in Rule 13a-15(e). In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management
recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required 1o
apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Our
management carried oul an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the foregoing, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the
reasonable assurance level at the end of our most recent fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. There have been
no changes in our disclosure controls and procedures or in other factors that could affect the disclosure controls
subsequent to the date management completed its evaluation,

Management has not yet completed, and is not yet required to have completed, its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION

None,

PART IH

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS;
COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(A) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

The following sets forth the names and ages of the executive officers and directors of our company as of
March 23, 2007, their respective principal occupations or employment during the past five years, and the period
during which each has served as a director our company.

Name Age Position

Ronald §. Kaplan ......... 41  Chief Executive Officer/Chairperson of the Board/ Chief
Financial Officer/Director

Richard Malagodi ......... 47  President/Chief Operating Officer

Scott Runkel ............. 59  Director

Dr. Barry Render .......... 60 Director

AnnE. W_Stone .......... 54  Director

Each member of the Board of Directors serves for a one-year term expiring at the 2007 annual meeting of
shareholders. On November 1, 2005, Ronald S. Kaplan, our company’s Chief Executive Officer, was appointed
as Chairperson of the Board to fill the vacancy created in that position by the resignation of Warren Kaplan. On
March 17, 2006 Mr. Alan Stone (not related o Ann E. Stone) resigned from the Board of Directors. We accepted
the resignations of, Lawrence Bernstein as President on July 31, 2006 and John Oliver as Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary on September 8, 2006. Those positions were filled by Ronald Kaplan on an interim basis. All
officers serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
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Ronald S. Kaplan, Chairman, Chicf Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer. Ronald Kaplan has
served as a Director since 1991, our company’s Chief Executive Officer since 1996, Chairman since November
2005 and Chief Financial Officer since Sept:mber 2006. He is the son of our company’s Founder, Judith Kaplan,
and Warren Kaplan, who was the former Chairperson. Prior to becoming an executive officer of our company
Mr. Kaplan’'s professional experience incluces retail store operations, wholesale sales, marketing, purchasing and
service in the United States Army where he held a secret clearance level. Prior to becoming CEQ he managed
Logo America, an apparel and promotional products sales and manufacturing business. Mr. Kaplan’s experience
also includes several corporate divestitures and acquisitions, Mr. Kaplan also serves on the Board of Trustees of
the Orlando Science Center, and on the Boa d of Directors of the American Specialty Toy Retailers Association,

Richard Malagodi, President and Chicf Operating Officer. Richard Malagodi has served as President and
Chief Operating Officer since February 2007. Mr. Malagodi has been serving in a consulting capacity assisting
us in our product development and operations since October 2006, Mr, Malagodi co-founded Opus Venture
Group, LLC, a boutique venture fund that icentifies, funds, and promotes products with brand potential for
electronic retailers, such as QVC and HSN. From 2003 1o 2006, he served as co-managing partner at Opus
Venture Group. In 2003, he served as Presicent of The Investor’s Studio/Big 1dea Group. From 1999 to 2003, as
part of a venture-backed turnaround, he serned as president and chief executive officer in the revitalization of Kid
Galaxy, Inc., a developer and marketer of tcys. He co-founded International Golf Footwear, Lid. where he served
as Chief Executive officer from 1988 to 19¢9. He earned his B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from Northeastern
University, Boston, Massachusetts.

Scott Runkel, Director. Scott Runkel, .1 member of the Board of Directors since 2002, is the Chief Financial
Officer of Gencor Industries Inc. (GNCI1.OF) a $60 million leading manufacturer of heavy machinery used for
the production of highway construction matzrials, based in Orlando, Florida. Mr, Runkel has over 30 years
experience as a financial executive. Previously Mr. Runkel was an Audit Partner and Director of Entrepreneurial
Services at Emst & Young. He was also a partner and co-founder of Curry & Runkel Financial Services, a firm
specializing in financing and consulting for privately owned businesses. He received his B.A. degree in
accounting from the University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh, and is a CPA. Mr. Runkel chairs our audit committee.

Ann E. W. Stone, Director. Ann E. W, Stone is the founder and president of The Stone Group, a nationally
recognized and award-winning direct marketing business. She serves on the board of: The Washington Center
(Women as Leaders) and the National Women'’s History Museum, among others. She is also active in the
National Association of Women Business ('wners (NAWBO), Alexandria Society for the Preservation of Black
Heritage, and the Animal Welfare League. .\ graduate of George Washington University, with a double major in
history and communications, Ms. Stone did graduate work in corporate finance and management at the Wharton
School of Business consortium. Ms. Stone chairs our nominating committee and serves on our audit committee.

Dr. Barry Render, Director. Dr. Rend:r, a member of the Board of Directors since 2006 and holder of the
first endowed chair at the Crummer School. is author of over 100 articles and 10 textbooks, including the widely
adopted Operations Management (7th Ed.} ind Quantitative Analysis for Management (8th Ed.). He has taught at
George Washington University, George Mzson University, Boston University, and the University of New
Orleans, and was Senior Fullbright Scholar in the Kingdom of Nepal in 1982 and 1993, At George Mason, he
held the G.M. Foundation Professorship and was chairman of the Department of Decision Sciences. He was
named and AACSB Fellow in 1978 and has worked in the aerospace industry for McDonnell Douglas, G.E., and
NASA. In 1996, Dr. Render was selected by Roosevelt University to receive the St. Clair Drake Award for
Quistanding Scholarship. Dr. Render chairs our compensation committee and serves on our nominating and audit
committees.

Audit Committee

The Board has a standing Audit Committee. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Runkel,
Dr. Render and Ms. Stone. Dr. Render was appointed to the Audit Committee on August 17, 2006, Each of
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Mr. Runkel , Dr. Render and Ms. Stone qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” under the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Each of Mr. Runkel, Dr. Render and Stone and Ms. Stone is an
“independent director” under the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market governing the qualifications of the members
of audit committees, In addition, the Board of Directors has determined that each member of the Audit
Committee is financially literate and that each of Mr. Runkel, Dr. Render and Ms. Stone has accounting and/or
related financial management expertise as required under the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market. Neither of

Mr. Runkel, Dr. Render or Ms. Stone serve on the audit committees of any other public companies. The Audit
Committee members do not participate in any meeting at which their compensation is evaluated.

On March 23, 2006, we received a Nasdaq Staff Deficiency Letter indicating that our company no longer
complies with Nasdaq’s audit committee requirement as set forth in Marketplace Rule 4350. Consistent with
Marketplace Rules 4350(d)(4) the company was provided a cure period until the earlier of our company’s next
annual shareholders’ meeting or March 17, 2007. As of August 17, 2006 with the appointment of Dr. Render, we
were in full compliance with Rule 4350(d)(2). Accordingly, Nasdagq issued a letter, dated September 26, 2006,
stating that we regained compliance with Rule 4350(d)(2).

The Audit Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors and must review
the appropriateness of its charter and perform a self-evaluation at least annually. The Audit Committee is charged
with exercising the power and authority of the Board of Directors in the administration and review of (1) the
quality and integrity of the company’s financial statements, (2) compliance by our company with regulatory
requirements and (3) the selection, independence and performance of our company’s external and internal
auditors.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our company’s directors and executive
officers, and persons who own more than ten percent of our company’s outstanding common shares to file with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™) and Nasdaq initial reports of ownership and reports of
changes in ownership of common shares. Such persons are required by the SEC regulations to furnish our
company with copies of all such reports they file. To our knowledge, except as set forth in the following
sentence, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports furnished to our company, all Section 16(a) filing
requirements applicable to officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners were timely filed and
current. On August 18, 2006, Dr. Barry Render was granted stock options to acquire 10,000 shares of common
stock, 5,000 shares of which are exercisable commencing February 18, 2007 and the remaining 5,000 shares are
exercisable commencing August 18, 2007. The options expire August 18, 2011. The Form 4 was filed on
January 31, 2007.

Code of Conduct

We have adopted a code of conduct that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer or controller, and persons performing similar functions. The text of the code is
available upon request. Written requests should be addressed to Ronald Kaplan, Chief Financial Officer, Action
Products International, Inc., 1101 North Keller Rd., Suite E, Orlando, Florida 32810, or telephone 407-481-8007.

Nominating Procedures

We made no changes to the procedures by which shareholders may recommend nominees to our Board of
Directors.
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ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary Compensation

The following table sets forth the aggregate compensation paid to the company’s Chief Executive Officer
(the “Principal Executive Officer”} and the "wo most highly compensated executive officers who were paid
$100,000 or more during the 2006 fiscal year and the two most highly compensated non-executive officers who
were paid $100,000 or more during the 2000 fiscal year (the “Named Executive Officers™). Except as set forth in
the table below, no bonuses or other compensation was paid during the 2006 and 2005 fiscal years.

Option All Other
Awards Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year  Salary (§) %) %) [£3)

Ronald S.Kaplan .............c.c00 v iiiiiinn. 2006 $145,100 $§ — 5 — $145,100
Chief Executive Officer 2005 $130,000 $ — $ 10,300  $140,300
(Principal Executive Officer) (1

John R.OLIVer . ..o e 2006 $100,500 $41,900 $ — $142,900
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary 2005 % 61,100 $31,400 % — 3 92,500
(Principal Financial Officer) 2}

Lawrence Bernstein ............... ... .iiruinnn. 2006 % 90400 $23,700 $ — $114,100
President 2005 % 11,500 $23700 % — $ 35,200

WarrenKaplan ......... ... ... ... i 2006 8§ — § — $143,200  $143,200
Chairperson 4 200 38 — $ — $117,800  $117,800

(1) Mr. Ron Kaplan’s All Other Compensation includes value of use of automobile and payout of earned
unused vacation,

{2) Mr. Oliver resigned as Chief Financial Officer and Secretary in September 2006,

(3) Mr. Bernstein resigned as President in July 2006.

(4) Mr. Warren Kaplan served as Chairpe:son from 2002 through November 2005. Mr. Warren Kaplan’s All
Other Compensation includes consulting, financing and investment advisory fees. The $143,200 reflected in
the summary compensation table includes $101,300 paid to Ronel Management Company, wholly-owned
by Warren Kaplan and Judith Kaplan, founder and former Board member, for consulting, financing and
investment advisory services.

Equity Awards

Stock Option Plan. To increase the officers, key employees and consultants interest in our company and to
align their interests more closely with the interests of our company’s shareholders, the Board of Directors
adopted a stock option plan called the “1966 Stock Option Plan” {the “Plan”) on May 28, 1996, as amended as of
April 27, 2004 and March 2, 2005. The Plan as originally adopted and as amended as of April 27, 2004 was
subsequently ratified by a majority vote of our company’s shareholders.

Under the Plan, our company has reserved an aggregate of 1,400,000 common shares for issuance pursuant
to options granted under the Plan. Plan Options are either (1) options qualifying as incentive stock options or
(2) options that do not qualify - non-qualified options. Any incentive option granted under the Plan must provide
for an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of such
grant, The exercise price of non-qualified options shall be determined by the Board of Directors or the
Committee but shall in no event be less thzn 75% of the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of
the grant. As of December 31, 2006, there were 30,000 incentive options and 225,000 non-qualified options
existing under the plan.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table

The following table sets forth the outstanding equity awards at December 31, 2006 for the Named Executive
Officers in the Summary Compensation Table:

Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying
Unexercised  Unexercised

Options Options 8(2:’_'3; Option
# ) Price Expiration
Name Exercisable  Unexercisable $) Date
Ronald S. Kaplan . .................. .o iiiiiiaas — — $— —
JohnR.Oliver . ... .. i — — $— —
Lawrence Bernstein .. ... ...t —_ — $— —
Warren Kaplan . ......... .. .. ... i i 100,000 $3.00 11/22/2008

Overview of Executive Compensation

We do not have an employment agreement with any of the executive officers named in the Summary
Compensation Table. Employment may terminate at any time without severance. All are entitled to the standard
benefits available to all employees and have executed our company’s nondisclosure and noncompete agreement,
which all of our employees are obligated to sign, that provides that each employee will not compete with us
during their employment and to always keep confidential our trade secrets and other confidential information.

Ronald Kaplan, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, receives an annual base salary of
$160,000 plus the value of the use of an automobile and the payout of unused vacation.

John R. Oliver, our Chief Financial Officer from June, 2005 through September 2006, received an annual
salary of $137,500. Mr. Oliver also received 150,000 options that vested over five years which expired
unexercised upon termination of employment in September, 2006.

Lawrence Bernstein, our President from November, 2005 through July, 2006, received an annual salary of
$125,000. Mr. Bernstein also received 250,000 options that vested over five years which expired unexercised
upon termination of employment in July, 2006.

Richard Malagodi was appointed as our President and Chief Operating Officer in February,
2007. Mr. Malagodi is responsible for the management and operation of our toy and craft business. We do not
have a written employment agreement with Mr. Malagodi. Mr. Malagodi receives an annual base salary of
$150,000.

In addition to the above-named executive officers, we paid $41,900 to Warren Kaplan, Chairperson of our
Board through November 2005, and $101,300 to Ronel Management Company, wholly-owned by Warren
Kaplan and Judith Kaplan, founder and former Board member, for consulting, financing, and investment
advisory services both of which are reflected in the compensation table for Mr. Warren Kaplan. In August 2003,
Mr. Warren Kaplan received 100,000 employee stock options expiring in November 2008.

Compensation of Directors

Directors who are full-time employees of our company receive no additional compensation for services
rendered as members of our company’s Board or any committee thereof. Outside Independent Directors of our
company receive $1,500 per year, and our Audit Committee Chair receives $3,000 per year. Non-employee
Directors receive meeting fees of $500 for each Board meeting attended in person, and $250 for each Board
meeting attended telephonically. In addition, from time to time our company may grant incentive stock options
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with an exercise price greater than the market value of the underlying stock to the directors for services rendered
while serving on the Board. In the past, outside directors have been granted 10,000 shares under the Stock Option
Pian for each year of service on the Board al. an exercise price above the market value of the shares as listed at
the time of the grant.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

Fees Earned or
Paidin Cash  Option Awards Total

Name %) S $)

Scott Runkel . ... .ot e $6,200 $15,000 $21,200
Ann E W, Stone . ... $3,500 $14,500 $18,000
Dr.BarryRender .................... e 31,500 $ 3,500 $ 5,000

(1) Option awards outstanding at December 31, 2006 were 45,000 for Mr, Runkel, 20,000 for Ms. Stone and
10,000 for Dr. Render.

Other

401(k) Plan. Effective October 3, 198€¢ our company adopted a Voluntary 401(k) Plan. All employees are
eligible for the plan. Previously, employees who had worked for our company for 18 months were currently
eligible for a 34% match of their subsequent contributions; however, the match policy was suspended January 1,
2003. Benefits are determined annuaily. The lowest 66% of paid employees may contribute the lesser of 15% of
their salary or the applicable maximum allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. The top 1/3 of employees cannot
contribute a percentage greater than 15% of their compensation or 150% of the average contribution of the
lowest 66% of paid employees to the applicible maximum allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. Employer
contributions vest within three months and 21! contributions are held in individual employee accounts with an
outside financial institution. Our company shares have never been allowed to be invested in the 401(k) plan.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

‘Number of securities Weighted-average Number of securities remaining
to e issued upon exercise exercise price of available for future issuance

Pian category __qf outstanding options outstanding options under equity compensation plans
Equity compensation plans approved

by sharcholders ................ 255,000 $3.22 578,800
Equity compensation plans not

approved by sharecholders ... ..... None N/A N/A
Total ........ ... 255,000 $3.22 578,800

These securities described in this table were granted solely under our company's Amended and Restated
1996 Stock Option Plan. See “Stock Option Plan” above.
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ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth information with respect to the number of common shares beneficially owned
by (i) each director of our company, (ii) the Named Executive Officers in the Sunmary Compensation Table,
(iii) all directors and officers as a group and (iv) each shareholder known by our company to be a beneficial
owner of more than 5% of the company’s common shares as of March 23, 2007. Except as otherwise indicated,
each of the shareholders listed below has sole voting and investment power over the shares beneficially owned
and the address of each beneficial owner is ¢/o Action Products International, Inc., 1101 North Keller Road, Suite
F, Orlando, Florida 32810. As of March 23, 2007, there were issued and outstanding 5,231,500 common shares.

Table of Beneficial Ownership

Amount and

Nature of
Beneficial Percent of
Name Ownership Class
Romald S. Kaplan ......... ... ..o 2,625,248(1}) 319.7%
JudithKaplan ... i 2,059, 710(2)(3) 31.2%
Warren Kaplan ....... ... .. i 1,822,568(3)(4) 27.6%
Financial & INVeSIMENL . .. ... .. .. . ittt it it naans 943,500(5) 18.05%
Management Group, Lid.
111 Cass St.
Traverse City, MI 49684
SOttt RUnKel . oottt e e e e 55,000{6) <1%
Ann E W, Stone ... ... e 20,000(7) <1%
Dr.BarryRender ... ... ... . 20,000(8) <%
Richard S. Malagodi . . ... e 5,000(9) <%
All Directors and Executive OfficersasaGroup ................... 5,684,138(10) 63.1%

(1) Includes exercisable warrants to purchase 368,416 shares at $2.00 per share and includes exercisable
warrants to purchase 1,128,416 at $3.25 per share until January 31,2008 and $3.75 from February 1, 2008
vitil December 31, 2010.

(2) Includes 464,634 shares owned individually and immediately exercisable options to purchase 50,000 shares
at $3.00 per share. Also includes exercisable warrants to purchase 616,688 shares at $2.00 per share and
includes exercisable warrants to purchase 469,634 at $3.25 per share until January 31, 2008 and $3.75 from
February 1, 2008 until December 31, 2010. Ms. Kaplan disclaims beneficial ownership in all 458,754 of her
husband’s shares.

(3) Ms. Kaplan and Mr. Warren Kaplan disclaim beneficial ownership in all 63,566 of their adult daughter
Elissa Paykin’s shares and exercisable warranis to purchase 167,566 shares at $3.25 per share until
January 31, 2008 and $3.75 from February 1, 2008 until December 31, 2010 which are not included.

(4) Includes 458,754 shares owned individually and immediately exercisable options to purchase 100,000
shares at $3.00 per share. Also includes exercisable warrants to purchase 327,426 shares at $2.00 per share
and includes exercisable warrants to purchase 471,754 shares at $3.25 per share until January 31, 2008 and
$3.75 from February 1, 2008 until December 31, 2010. Mr. Warren Kaplan disclaims beneficial ownership
in all 464,634 of his wife’s shares.

(5) According to a Schedule 13G filed February 7, 2007, Financial & Investment Management Group, Ltd
(“FIMG") is a registered investment advisor managing individual client accounts, the common shares
owned by FIMG are held in accounts owned by the clients of FIMG, and FIMG disclaims bencficial
ownership of such common shares.

(6) Includes immediately exercisable options to purchase 5,000 shares at $1.88 per share, exercisable options to
purchase 5,000 shares at $2.35 per share, exercisable options to purchase 10,000 shares at $3.04 per share,
exercisable options to purchase 10,000 shares at $3.33 per share, exercisable options to purchase 10,000
shares at $4.38 per share, exercisable warrants to purchase 5,000 shares at $2.00 per share and exercisable
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warrants to purchase 5,000 shares at $3.25 per share until January 31, 2008 and $3.75 from February 1,
2008 until December 31, 2010. Excludes currently unexercisable options to purchase 5,000 shares at $2.35
per share.

(7) Includes immediately exercisable options to purchase 10,000 shares at $3.50 per share and exercisable
options to purchase 10,000 shares at $.38 per share.

{(8) Includes 15,000 shares owned individually and immediately exercisable options to purchase 5,000 shares at
$1.75 per share. Excludes currently unzxercisable options to purchase 5,000 shares at $1.75 per share,

{9) Includes 5,000 shares owned individuzlly.

(10) Includes immediately exercisable options to purchase 215,000 shares and exercisable warrants to purchase
3,392,334 shares.

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE:

During 2006 we paid $41,900 to Warr:n Kaplan and $101,300 to Ronel Management Company, wholly-
owned by Warren Kaplan, former Chairper:on of the Board, and Judith Kaplan, founder and former Board
member, for consulting , financing and investment advisory services both of which are reflected in the
compensation table for Mr. Warren Kaplan During 2005 we paid $40,600 to Warren Kaplan and $77,200 in
2005 to Ronel Management Company, whelly-owned by Warren Kaplan, former Chairperson of the Board, and
Judith Kaplan, founder and former Board member, for consulting , financing and investment advisory
services both of which are reflected in the compensation table for Mr. Warren Kaplan,

For information on our Board of Director’s independence, see Item 9 above.

ITEM 13. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
Exhibits
Set forth below is a list of the exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.

Number Description

31 Amended Articles of Incorporation (1)
32 Amended Bylaws (1)
10.1 Incentive Stock Option Plan (2)
10.2 401 (k) Plan (3)
10.3 1996 Stock Option Plan (4)
104 License Agreement dated December 17, 2001, by and between Action Products International, Inc.
and Porchlight Entertainment, inc. (5)
10.6 Warrant Agreement by and between our company and Registrar & Transfer Company dated as of
June 12, 2003 ()
10.9 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of April 5, 2004, by and between Action Products

International, Inc., Curiosity Kits, Inc. and Brighter Vision Holdings, Inc. (10)

10.12 License Agreement dated Junuary 26, 2005, by and between Action Products International, Inc. and
Taffy Entertainment, LLC (12)

10.13 Loan Agreement by and betwezn AmSouth Bank and Action Products International, Inc. dated
September 6, 2005 (14)

10.14 Asset Purchase Agreement dat:d as of September 23, 20035, by and between Action Products
international, Inc. and I Made That, Inc. (13)
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Number Description
10.15 License Agreement dated January 31, 2006, by and between Action Products International, Inc. and
Porchlight Entertainment, Inc. (16)
10.16 Warrant Agreement by and between Action Products International, Inc. and Registrar & Transfer
Company dated June 16, 2006 (17)
10.17 First Amendment to the Warrant Agreement by and between Action Products International, Inc. and
Registrar & Transfer Company dated July 31, 2006 (18)
10.18 Warrant Solicitation Agreement by and between Action Products International, Inc. and Brookstreet
Securities Corporation dated August 1, 2006 (19)
10.19 Second Amendment to the Warrant Agreement by and between Action Products International, Inc.
and Registrar & Transfer Company dated January 31, 2007 (20)
10.20 Letter Agreement dated March 22, 2007 by and between Regions bank (as successor by merger to
AmSouth Bank) and Action Products International, Inc.*
17.1 Resignation letter of Mr. Alan Stone as a Director (21)
21.1 List of Subsidiaries*
23.1 Consent of Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A*
31.1 Chief Executive Officer - Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 302 Centification*
321 Chief Executive Officer - Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 906 Certification®
99.1 Notice of Nasdaq Staff Deficiency Letter (22)
* Filed herewith
(1} Incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement, filed April 29, 2004, File No. 0-13118.
(2) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S$-18, filed September 27, 1984, File
No. 002-93512-A.
(3) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1996, fited August 17, 1987, File No. 0-13118.
@) Incorporated by reference 1o our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2000, filed April 2, 2001, File No. 0-13118.
(5) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2002, filed on March 26, 2003.
(6) Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended June 30, 2004,
filed on July 25, 2003.
(7) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-3, filed May 29, 2003, File
No. 333-106713.
(10) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2004.
(11) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-3, filed December 3, 2004, File
No. 333-120970.
(12) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 23, 2005.
(13) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2000, filed April 2, 2001, File No. 0-13118.
(14) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 20, 2005
(15) Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005, filed on November 1, 2005.
(16) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 31, 2006.
(17) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-3, filed on June 16, 2006, File
No. 333-135078.
(18) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 1, 2006.
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(19) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 24, 2006,
(20) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2007,
{21} Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2006.
(22) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2006.

Reports on Form §-K
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A., acted as the principal accountants for our company for the fiscal year most
recently completed. We paid the following r'ees to its anditor during 2006 and 2005:

Percentage of Percentage of
Audit-Related Percentage of All Other
Services Tax Services Services
Approved by Approved by All Approved by
Audit Audit- the Audit the Audit Other the Ardit
Year Ending Fees ) Relat:d Fees Committee Tax Fees@  Committee Fees & Committee
2006 ...l $76,000 L0 N/A $12,800 100%  $5.000 100%
2005 Lo $53,500 S0 N/A $13,800 100% $ 500 100%

(1) Audit Fees consist of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of our company's annual financial
statements and a review of the interim financial statements included in the quarterly reports and services
normally provided by Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A.

(2) Tax Fees consists of fees for professional services rendered in preparing the federal and state tax returns,
and for providing tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning assistance.

(3) All Other Fees consist of fees for professional services rendered for research, consultation and review the
Form S-3 filing. '

Audit Committee’s Pre-approval Policy and Procedures

The Audit Committee of the Board of L¥rectors has adopted policies and procedures for the pre-approval of
audit and non-audit services for the purpose >f maintaining the independence of our company’s independent
auditors. We may not engage our independent auditors to render any audit or non-audii service unless either the
Audit Committee approves the service in advance or the engagement to render the service is entered into pursuant to
the Audit Committee’s pre-approval policies and procedures. Pre-approval of audit services shall not be delegated to
management, but may be delegated to one o1 more independent members of the Committee so long as that member
or members report their decisions to the Committee at atl regularly scheduled meetings. Pre-approval of non-audit
services with an expected cost of less than $15,000 individually and in the aggregate may be delegated to
management. During 20086, no services were provided to the company by Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A. or any
other accounting firm other than in accordance with the pre-approval policies and procedures described above.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We are subject to the informational re«|uirements of the Exchange Act and, in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission; we file reports, proxy statements and other information.
You may inspect such reports, proxy statements and other information at public reference facilities of the
Commission at Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street N.W., Washington D.C. 20549; Northwest Atrium Center, 500
West Madison Street, Suite 1400, Chicago, Illinois 60661; and 5670 Wilshire Boulevard, Los Angeles, California
90036. Copies of such material can be obtained from the Public Reference Section of the Commission at
Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street N.W., Wazhington, D.C. 20549, at prescribed rates. For further information, the
SEC maintains a website that contains repoits, proxy and information statements, and other information
regarding reporting companies at http://www.sec.gov or call (800) SEC-0330.

You may find us on the Web at www.apii.com. We do not intend to incorporate by reference any
information contained on our website into this Form 10-KSB, and you should not consider information contained
on our website as part of this Form 10-KSE.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Action
Products International, Inc. has duly caused this report to he signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.

ACTION PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By fs/ RONALD S. KAPLAN

Ronald S. Kaplan
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal executive officer)

Date: April 2, 2007
In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has

been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/s/ RONALD S. KAPLAN Chairperson of the Board and April 02, 2007
Ronald S. Kaplan Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer
(Principal executive officer and
principal accounting officer)

fs/ SCOTT RUNKEL Director April 02, 2007
Scott Runkel

fs/ ANN E. W. STONE Director April 02, 2007
Ann E. W, Stone

/s/ BARRY RENDER Director April 02, 2007
Dr. Barry Render
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
Action Products International, Inc.
Orlando, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Action Products International, Inc. and
Subsidiary as of December 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States of America). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Action Products International, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2006, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Is/ Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A.

Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A,
Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Flonida
March 29, 2007
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ACTION PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2006

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS .
Cashand cashequivalents .. ... .. ... ... i $ 369,900
INVESIMENE SECUMTIES . . vttt ettt e e ettt et ittt et et 157,000
Accounts receivable, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $160,100 ............... 1,913,800
N =3 (Lo o [ 1 1,545,300
Prepaid expenses and otherassets . ............ . . i s 263,200
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ... . e e e 4,249,200
PROPERTY, PLANT ANDEQUIPMENT ........... ... ..., e 3,584,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . ........ ... ..ttt (2,584,300)
NET PROPERTY, PLANT ANDEQUIPMENT ........ ... ... it 999,700
GOODDWILL ...ttt e i s et e e e 1,405,300
OTHER ASSET S o i et e e e e e e __96,30_9
TOTAL ASSET S . oo o i e e e ettt e $ 6,750,400
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ... ... .. e $ 469,200
Accrued expenses, payroll and related expenses . ... ... ... ... i 830,600
Current portion of mortgage payable . ... . . . . . . . L. 41,100
Borrowings under line of credit . . .. ... ... L e e 1,178,400
Other current Habilities ... ...ttt i it e e 63,600
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES . ... .. . it 2,582,900

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock—10,000,000 shares authorized, :'ero shares issued and outstanding ......... —
Common stock—$.001 par value; 15,000,000 authorized; 5,435,000 shares issued .......... 5,400
Treasury stock—203,500 shares, at par ....... ... . . ittt (200)
Additional paid-in capital ....... ... . .. e 8,958,800
Unearned compensation COSE . ... ... ... Lt e (18,100)
Accumulated DEfICIl & oo v vttt ot e e e e e e e (4,778,400)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY .. ...ttt ieea i innnes 4,167,500
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY . ... oo $ 6,750,400

The accompanying notes arz an integral part of the financial statements,
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ACTION PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005
NET SALES .. e e et e £ 7,437,100 $9,480,500
COST OF SALES ... i e e e e e 4,243,800 4,468,800
GROSS PROFIT .. i ittt as 3,193,300 5,011,700
OPERATING EXPENSES
Ko | 1 2,631,200 2,363,300
General and adminIstralive ... .. et et i e 3,190,600 2,666,700
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .. ... .. .. i, 5,821,800 5,030,000
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS ... ... et (2,628,500) (18,300)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
IEErEst EXPENSE . ..ottt ettt e e (62,900) (76,500}
711 T2 {23,800) 73,600
TOTAL OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) ........ ... i i, (86,700) (2,900)
LOSS BEFORE BENEFIT FROMINCOMETAXES ............ ...t (2,715,200) (21,200)
BENEFIT FROM INCOME TAXES . ... ... i — —
NET LSS e et e $(2,715,200) $ (21,200)
LLOSS PER SHARE
Basic & Diluted . ... .. ... e $ 052) $ 0.0)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic & Diluted ..., . ... e e 5,214,500 4,989,700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ACTION PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT: OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

BALANCE—JANUARY 1,

2005 ...l

TREASURY STOCK
{Repurchase of Common

Shares) ................

ISSUANCE OF COMMON

SHARES .................
NETLOSS .................

BALANCE—DECEMBER 31,

2005 ...

TREASURY STOCK, at par
{Repurchase of Common

Shares) ................

ISSUANCE OF COMMON

SHARES .................

SHARE BASED
COMPENSATION

(net of cancellations) .......
NETLOSS .................

BALANCE—DECEMBER 31,

2006 ...

Common !itock
$.001 Par Value

Additional Unearned Total
Outstanding Paid-In Compensation (Accumulated  Shareholders’

Shares Amount Capital Cost Deficit) Equity
4,568,800 $4.500 57,154,100 S — $(2,042,000) % 5,116,600
(23,300) — (64,500) - — (64,500)
651,700 700 1,704,500 —_ — 1,705,200
— — — —_ (21,200) (21,200)
5,197,200 5200 8,794,100 — (2,063,200) 6,736,100
(500) — (900) — — (900)
34,800 — 26,500 — — 26,500
— — 139,100 (18,100} — 121,000
— — — — (2,715,200) (2,715,200)
5,231,500 $5,200 $8,958,800  $(18,100) $(4,778,400) $(4,167,500)

The accompanying notes ae an integral part of the financial statements.
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ACTION PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
[T 0 $(2,715,2000 $ (21,200)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used) in operating
activities
Depreciation . ... ... ... 291,600 271,200
AMOTEZALION . o 0ttt s it r e e e ettt e ittt ta s s e arsan e aasnnns 111,500 71,800
Unrealized (gains) losses on investment SECUrities . . .. ........ooioaaas {60,600) 26,800
Amortization of share-based compensation expense ...................... 121,000 —
Provision forbaddebts ........ .. ... i 367,100 130,200
Provision for iNVENIOry reServe . ... ... iaannnnnnnnennaens 330,000 28,100
Changes in:
ACCOUNS eCeivADIE .. .. et e e 472,200 (375,600)
TNVESIMENE SECUIEIES .« o v o v v ot e et e et et e et e e e et an e aa e 340,800 (324,100)
By RT2 =030 5 7= g 216,500 (572,800)
Prepaid EXPenses ... ...ttt 212,000 (193,600)
(0017 o Tt R P (65,0000 (116,500}
Accounts payable ... ... ... e 299,900 81,400
ACCIUed EXPENSES . ...t n i 107,100 151,200
Dl erTed LEVEIIIE . . o\ ot i ettt e e e (25,000) (25,000)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES ........... 3,900 (868,100)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiary . ....... ... o — (23,300)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment . .. ...... ... . oo (91,200)  (204,800)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES .......... ... ... ... .. 91,200y  (228,100)
CASH FLLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Treasury S10ck . . . ... ... i s (900) (64,500)
Net proceeds from common stock options and warrants exercises . ............... 26,500 1,695,300
Repayment of mortgage principal .. ......... ... e (67,3000  (366,800)
Net change in borrowings under line of credit ...................... .. ... ... 275,500 (840,000)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..................... 233,800 424,000
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ........ 146,500 (672,200)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNINGOFYEAR .............. 223,400 895,600
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATENDOFYEAR .......... ... ... $ 369900 $ 223400

Supplemental disclosures—cash paid for:
L=t = SR G $ 50800 § 76300
Income Taxes ... ... oo i ittt e — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ACTION PRODUCTS INYERNATIONAL, INC, AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

NOTE 1—NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Description of Business and Basis of Pre;entation

Action Products International, Inc. and subsidiary (the “Company™) is a designer, manufacturer and
marketer of quality educational, positive and non-violent branded toys which it sells te specialty retailers,
museums, toy stores, theme parks, atiracticns, zoos, catalog companies, Internet retailers and educational
markets in the United States and worldwide:.

The Company was originally founded in 1977 as a distributor of select consumer products to primarily
museum gift shops in the United States. New management assumed the helm in 1997, divested non-core
assets and introduced Space Voyagers® the Company’s first proprietary toy brand, thus launching Action
Products’ new business focus, In October 2000, the successful I DIG® brand was acquired, followed by the
acquisition of the JAY JAY THE JET PLANE™ license in December 2001 from Porchlight Entertainment
and joined by the acquisition of Curiesity Kits® in April 2004. The three new brands generated
approximately $5.4 million of the Company’s 2006 net sales of $7.4 million.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the results of operations of Action Products
International, Inc. and its wholly owned foeign subsidiary, Action Products Canada, Ltd., for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. In Janwary 2005, Action Products Canada, Ltd. was dissolved.

All significant intercompany transactions t ave been eliminated.

Certain amounts in the financial statements for prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current
year presentation.

Operations

The Company incurred significant losses in the current year and it is currently in the process of evaluating
and negotiating a new borrowing arranger ent to replace its existing line of credit agreement that expires
April 30, 2007. In effort to eliminate these losses, the Company has recently changed certain key members
of management, has focused efforts on redacing overhead and operational costs, and is evaluating its
product lines for proper margin contributicns. Management believes that it will be successful in its plans to
return the Company to profitability and in its efforts to replace its existing line of credit agreement;
accordingly, no adjustments have been made to the accompanying financials that might be necessary if the
Company were unable to return to profitable operations or if it were unsuccessful in obtaining an adequate
borrowing arrangement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For financial presentation purposes, the Company constders short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less ‘o be cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities are categorized as trading securities and stated at market value. Included in trading
liabilities are options that the Company ha; sold but did not own and therefore is obligated to purchase at a
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ACTION PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

future date (“short positions™). Market value is determined using the quoted closing or latest bid prices.
Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are determined by specific identification. and are
recognized as incurred in the statement of income. Net unrealized gains and losses are reported in the
statement of income and represent the change in market value of investment holdings during the period. At
December 31, 2006 marketable securities consisted of $157,000 in investment securities and $36,000 in
options sold short.

Cumulative
Unrealized
Gain(Loss)
Value At At
December 31, December 31,
2006 2006
Equity Securities ......... ..o $157,000 $(24,300)
SHOT POSILIONS .« v vt e et ettt e e e e tee e e e $ (36,000) $ 1300

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable result from the sale of the Company’s products at sales prices, net of estimated sales
returns and other allowances. The Company estimates an allowance for doubtful accounts based on a
specific identification basis and additional allowances based on historical collections experience. Accounts
are considered past due when outstanding beyond the stated payment terms. The Company will not write-off
any account receivable until all reasonable means of collection have been exhausted and collection does not
appear probable.

Inventories

Inventories, which primarily consist of finished goods purchased for resale, are stated at the lower of cost
(determined by the first-in, first-out method) or market. Based upon a consideration of quantities on hand,
actual and anticipated sales volume, anticipated product selling price and product lines planned to be
discontinued; slow-moving and obsolete inventory is written down to its estimated net realizable value. The
inventory valuation allowance at December 31, 2006 was $355,800.

It is the Company’s policy to capitalize shipping costs from our vendors as inventory. Along with these
freight costs may be insurance and other costs relating to getting the inventory to the warehouse or the
customer if drop shipped. The Company records freight-out as a selling expense. Freight-out expense
approximated $509,000 and $475,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets, as follows:

Building . ... e 40 Years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . ........ ... ... . e 3-10 Years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the improvements, or the term of
the lease, if shorter, .
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Property, plant and equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2006:

Land . . e e $ 67400
Building improvements . .......... .. i i . 1,053,500
Equipment . ... e e 2,243,500
Furniture and fixtures . ....... . ... 219,600
$3,584,000

Goodwill

The cost of acquired companies in excess of the fair value of net assets at acquisition date is recorded as
“goodwill,” and is tested at least annually “or impairment. Management believes, based on the testing
performed during 2006, that goodwill of $1,405,300 is not impaired at December 31, 2006.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses and other assets consist of the following at December 31, 2006:

Insurance Ppremims . ... ..ot e e e $ 54,200
Trade show deposits . . ...t i e e e e e 109,500
Service & software maintenance fees .. .. .. .. e e 26,900
Marketing and promotional materials ......... ... ... ... ... .. . ... ., 20,400
L 1 1 = 52,200

$263.200

Other assets classified as long-term consist primarily of costs associated with certain product development,
patent and trademark costs. These assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, as
follows:

Net Book
Value At
December 31,
2006
Product developmentcosts . . ...... ... ... ... ... ... 2 Years $51,000
Patentsand trademarks . . ......... ... .o 15 Years 18,000

Other ... e 2 -5 Years 27,200
$96,200

The gross carrying amount and accumulared amortization of product development costs at December 31,
2006 are $66,500 and $15,500, rcs_peclively. Related amortization expense for 2006 and 2005 was $84,400
and 47,500, respectively.

The gross carrying amount and accumulaed amortization of patents and trademarks at December 31, 2006
are $65,700 and $47,700, respectively. Related amortization expense for 2006 and 2005 was $27,100 and
$24,300 respectively.
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In 2007 and future years amortization of product development and other intangible assets would be as
follows:

December 31,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter
Amortization of product development and
other intangible assets . ............. $43,500 $26,300 $4.800 $4.300 34,300 313,000

In the event a product is discontinued and the associated costs are not fully amortized, the unamortized
portion is charged to expense at the time the product is discontinued.

The Company assesses the recoverability of intangible assets if facts and circumstances suggest that their
carrying amount may have been impaired. In making its assessment, the Company gives consideration to the
undiscounted cash flows from the use of such assets, the estimated fair value of such assets, and other
factors that may affect the recoverability of such assets. If such an assessment indicates that the carrying
value of intangible assets may not be recoverable, the carrying value of intangible assets is reduced.

Deferred Revenue

In December 1997, the Company entered into an agreement with the purchaser of certain of the Company’s
assets associated with its snack food product line. The agreement provided for, among other things, the
Company to receive compensation of $250,000 in exchange for ceasing its activities related to the
manufacture and sale of freeze-dried snack foods for a period of ten years. The Company recorded the
$250,000 in compensation as deferred revenue at December 31, 1997 and is amortizing this amount into
income using the straight-line method over the terms specified in the agreement. As of December 31, 2006,
deferred revenue related to this agreement was $25,000.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue upon shipment of our products provided there are no significant post-delivery
obligations to the customer and collection is reasonably assured. This generally occurs upon shipment,
either from our U.S. distribution facility or directly from our third-party manufacturers. Net sales represent
gross sales less negotiated price allowances based primarily on volume purchasing levels and actual
allowances for defective items.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future 1ax consequences of
events that have been included in its financial statements or tax returns. Deferred income tax liabilities and
assets are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of liabilities and
assels using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse (see
Note 4).

Net Income Per Share

Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
each year. Diluted earnings per share is based on the sum of the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding plus common share equivalents arising out of stock options, warrants and convertible
debt, if any.
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Common share equivalents were not consiclered in the diluted earnings per share calculation for 2006 and
2005 because their effect would have been anti-dilutive. As a result, both basic and diluted earnings per
share for 2006 and 2005 were calculated based on approximately 5,214,500 and 4,989,700, respectively,
weighted average common shares outstanding during the year.

Common share equivalents excluded from the diluted earnings per share computations due to their
antidilutive nature approximated 7,157,600t and 6,650,900 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Comprehensive Income

The Company has no accumulated or current items of comprehensive income that are excluded from net
income. Accordingly, the Company has not presented a statement of comprehensive income.

Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financ:al statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions by management include, among others, the
estimated valuation allowances for receivables and inventory, and the carrying value of intangible assets.

Credit Risk and Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk at
December 31, 2006, include trade receivatles, $325,400 of cash deposited in a brokerage account and a
money market mutual fund and $157,000 in investment securities.

The money market fund is not protected under the FDIC; however, the Company has not experienced any
losses in these funds. The Company believes that it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on money
market funds.

The Company has a diversified customer trase including some of the major toy retailers in the U.S. and
Canada. Ten large customers accounted for slightly less than 34% and 36% of net sales in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The largest single customer accounted for slightly less than 11% and 13% of total net sales for
the same periods, respectively.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect 10 trade receivables are limited, in the opinion of management,
due to the Company’s large number of customers, their geographical dispersion and credit management
policies. As of December 31, 2006, appronimately 18% of the Company’s accounts receivable was due from
one customer.

During 2006 and 2005 our largest single manufacturer supplied 10% and 9% respectively, of our products
and our top three manufacturers combined supplied a total of 25% and 24% respectively. We believe that

other manufacturers are available to us should any of our significant manufacturers, inctuding our largest

manufacturer, be unable or unwilling to continue to manufacture our products for us.
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Based on our net sales in 2006, major retailers and international distributors took title to approximately 11%
of our products directly from our manufacturing facilities in Asia. However, the majority of our product is
shipped directly to our warehouse in Ocala, Florida and is later shipped to meet the demands of our major
U.S. retailers and our retailers and distributors throughout the U.S. and Canada.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, mortgage payable, and the line of credit approximate their
fair values.

New Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes
APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and amends SFAS No. 95, “Statement
of Cash Flows.” Generally, the approach in SFAS No. 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS
No. 123. However, SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma
disclosure is no longer an alternative.

In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission amended the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R) to
the first period of the first fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company was required to adopt
SFAS No. [23(R) on January 1, 2006. SFAS No, 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its requirements
using one of two methods: (1) a “modified prospective” method in which compensation cost is recognized
beginning with the effective date (a) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all share-based
payments granted after the effective date and (b} based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123 for all awards
granted to employees prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective
date; or (2) a “modified retrospective” method which includes the requirements of the modified prospective
method described above, but also permits entities to restate all prior periods presented based on the amounts
previously recognized under SFAS No. 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures. The Company adopted
SFAS No. I23(R) using the modified-prospective method.

Prior to 2006, as permitted by SFAS No. 123, the Company accounted for share-based payments to
employees using APB Opinion No. 25’s intrinsic value method and, as such, generally recognized no
compensation cost for employee stock options. Had we adopted SFAS No. 123(r) in prior periods, the
impact of the standards would have approximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as described in the
disclosure of pro forma net earnings (see Note 6).

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statemeni No. 109.” This Interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement

No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” This Interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement approach for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. This
Interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is currently
assessing the impact that this Interpretation will have on the Company’s financial statements,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This Statement defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and
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expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurement. However, this Statement does not require
any new fair value measurements. This Stalement is effective for the financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007, ind interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is
evaluating the effect that this Statement wi | have on the Company’s financial statements,

In September 2006, the FASE issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans (an amendinent of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132R)”, which
will require employers to fully recognize the obligations associated with single-employer defined benefit
pension, retiree healthcare and other postretirement plans in their financial statements. Under past
accounting standards, the funded status of nn employer’s postretirement benefit plan (i.e., the difference
between the plan assets and obligations) w.is not always completely reported in the balance sheet. Past
standards only required an employer to dis:lose the complete funded status of its plans in the notes to the
financial statements. SFAS No. 158 applies to plan sponsors that are public and private companies and
nongovernmental not-for-profit organizations. The requirement to recognize the funded status of a benefit
plan and the disclosure requirements are effective as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 135,
2006, for entities with publicly traded equity securities, and at the end of the fiscal year ending after

June 15, 2007, for all other entities. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the
date of the employer’s fiscal year-end state ment of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2008. The Company does not expect that the adoption of SFAS No. 158 will have a material
impact on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

On February 15, 2007, the FASB issued SIFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (SFAS 159). Under this Standard, the Company may elect to report financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value on a contract-by-contract basis with changes in value
reported in earnings. This election is irrevacable. SFAS 159 provides an opportunity to mitigate volatility in
reported earnings that is caused by measuring hedged assets and liabilities that were previously required to
use a different accounting method than the related hedging contracts when the complex provisions of SFAS
133 hedge accounting are not met.

SFAS 159 is effective for years beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption within 120 days of the
beginning of the Company’s 2007 fiscal y::ar is permissible, provided the Company has not yet issued
interim financial statements for 2007 and has adopted SFAS 157. The Company is currently evaluating the
potential impact of adopting this standard.

NOTE 2—MORTGAGE PAYABLE

In November 1998, the Company borrowed $750,000 in the form of a mortgage payable, collateralized by
its warehouse facility in Ocala, Florida. The mortgage bears interest at 7.5% per annum and is due in 120
monthly payments of principal and interest of approximately $6,100 based on a 20-year amortization. The
Company has prepaid $315,100 of the principal balance as of December 31, 2006. The mortgage is
collateralized by real estate and improvements and contains certain restrictive covenants, which provide
that, among other things, the Company maintains a minimum working capital and net worth, debt service
coverage and a maximum debt to net worth ratio. At December 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance
with all covenants. The outstanding principal balance due on the mortgage payable at December 31, 2006,
was $41,100 and current.
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Maturities on mortgage obligation are approximately as follows:

Year Ending
December 31, Amount

2007 41,100
$41,100

Cash paid for interest on the mortgage payable during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
approximated $6,000 and $21,300, respectively. Cash paid for interest on all borrowing arrangements and
lease obligations was $50,800 and $76,300 in 2006 and 2003, respectively,

NOTE 3—CREDIT LINE

The Company maintains a working capital line of credit with a financial institution. The agreement
stipulates, among other things, a borrowing limit of the lesser of $2,500,000 or the sum of 85% of eligible
accounts receivable and 50% of eligible inventory, as further defined in the agreement. Borrowings are
collateralized by all accounts receivable and inventories. Interest is payable monthly based on a variable rate
equal to the Prime rate (Prime rate was 8.25% at December 31, 2006) plus 150 basis points. The agreement
also requires, amnong other things, that the Company maintain certain financial ratios measured on an annual
basis. The original term of the agreement expired August 30, 2006. The Company received an extension
through March 31, 2007 and is reviewing options with various financial institutions. On March 22, 2007, the
Company received an additional extension through Apnl 30, 2007. At December 31, 2006 the Company was
not in compliance with the debt service coverage covenant. If losses continue, the Company will be in
breach of one or more of these covenants at the renewal time on March 31, 2007, A1 December 31, 2006,
the Company had $1,178,400 of borrowings outstanding under the line of credit.
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NOTE 4—INCOME TAXES

There was no benefit for income taxes recorded in the financial statements for either of the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax liabilities and assets at December 31, 2006, are
approximately as follows:

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Amortization of goodwill .. ... .., ... e $ (81100)
Unrealized gain oninvestments ... ....... ... ..coiveiiiiinna... (22.800)
Gross deferred tax liabilities ......... .. ... .. ... .. .......... (103,900)
Deferred Tax Assets :
Bad debtallowance ........ ... ... i i e 31,500
Inventory reserves ... ... i e e 70,000
Property and equipment depreciation .......... ... ... . ... ... .. 26,900
Deferred stock based compensation ............... ... ... ... ... 23,800
Federal net operating loss carryforward . ............. ... ......... 677,900
State net operating loss carryforvard .......... ... . L, 276,500
Grossdeferred tax a@ssets . .....ovvvir e, 1,106,600
Valuation allowance . ... .ot i e e e e (1,002,700}
Netdeferred tax assets .. ............ oo 103,900

Netdeferred taxes . ........coueiniiriin it $ —

During 2006, the deferred tax asset valuation allowance increased by $548,000.

The Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $4,219,000 that expire
beginning in 2017 and a state net operatin 3 loss carryforward of approximately $4,727,000 that has no
expiration date.

A reconciliation of income tax expense (bznefit) at the U.S. federal statutory rate to actual income tax
expense (benefit) is as follows:

2006 2005
Federal provision (benefit) expected at statutory rates ............... (34.0%) (34.0%)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit ................ (3.3%) (3.3%)
Non-deductible expenses, effect of graduated rates and other rates and
o] .11 37.3 37.3
Benefit fromincometaxes ... ....... .. .. .. i, $ — 5 —

No income taxes were paid during the yeers ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

NOTE 5—INTERNATIONAL SALES
International sales, including Canada, amounted to $430,400 and $730,000 in 2006 and 20035, respectively.
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NOTE 6—SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 23R, “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R). SFAS 123R revised SFAS 123, “Accounting
for Stock Based Compensation” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock [ssued to
Employees.” SFAS 123R requires companies to measure and recognize compensation expense for all
employee stock-based payments at fair value over the service period underlying the arrangement. Therefore,
the Company is now required to record the grant-date fair value of its graded vesting employee stock-based
payments (i.e., stock options and other equity-based compensation} in the statement of operations. The
Company adopted FAS 123R using the “modified prospective” method, whereby fair value of all
previously-granted employee stock-based arrangements that remained unvested at Januvary 1, 2006 and all
grants made on or after January 1, 2006 will be included in the Company’s determination of stock-based
compensation expense over the remaining vesting period of the underlying options. In accordance with the
modified prospective method, the Company has not restated its operating results for the year ended
December 31, 2005 to reflect charges for the fair value of stock-based arrangements.

As aresult of adopting SFAS 123R, on January 1, 2006, the Company recorded approximatety $914,800
unearned compensation cost related to previously issued stock options to its employees.

The fair value of each employee and director grant of options to purchase common stock is estimated on the
date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of restricted common stock
grants is measured based upon the quoted market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of
grant. On December 31, 2006 we had one share-based compensation plan. The compensation costs charged
as operating expense for grants under the plan were approximately $121,000 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006. No tax benefit was recognized related to share-based compensation expense since we
have established a full valuation allowance to offset all of the potential tax benefits associated with our
deferred tax assets. In addition, no amounts of share-based compensation cost were capitalized as part of
fixed assets or inventory for the periods presented.

As of December 31, 2006 there was $18,100 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to share based
compensation arrangements. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighled average period of |
year.

Prior to January 1, 2006, Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncement FAS No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“FAS 123™) required that the Company calculate the value of stock
options at the date of grant using an option pricing model. The Company elected the “‘pro-forma, disclosure
only” option permitted under FAS 123, instead of recording a charge to operations, as shown below:

2005
Net (Loss) Asreported ... e $ (21,200)
Proforma.... ... ... ... .. ... . . . . ... $(147,900)

(Loss) per share  Basic & Diluted
Asreported .. ... L e $ (000
Proforma.......... ... $  (0.03)
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The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2006 was $1.03 per option,

The Company’s weighted-average assumpt: ons used in the pricing model and resulting fair values were as
follows: )

w6 25
Risk-free rate ... ... ... ... . i 50% 3.1%
Expected option life {in years) ......... ... . ... . . . i, 4.9 6.5
Expected stock price volatility .......... ... ... ... . . 78% 80%
Dividendyield .......... oo e 0.0% 0.0%
Weighted average grantdate value .. ... ....... ... ... . ..., $1.84 $195

On May 28, 1996, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the “1996 Stock Option Plan” (the “SOP”).
Under the SOP, the Company has reserved an aggregate of 1,400,000 shares of common stock for issuance
pursuant to options. SOP options are issuatde at the discretion of the Board of Directors at exercise prices of
not less than the fair market value of the urderlying shares on the grant date. During 2006 and 2005, a total
of 20,000 and 470,000 options, respectivelv, were issued under the SOP at a weighted average exercise
price of $§2.05 and $3.10 per share, respectively. The estimated fair value of the options issued in 2006 was
$20,600.

There was an aggregate of 255,000 stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006. The options expire as
follows: 31,000 in 2007; 171,000 in 2008; 3,000 in 2009; 25,000 in 2010 and 20,000 in 2011. In the event of
a change in the Company’s control, the options may not be callable by the Company. The following table
summarizes the aggregate stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005:

Weighted-
Number Average
of Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31,2004 . ............. ... . 366,700 $3.39
€1 1|2 470,000 $3.10
BXerCISES .« ottt e s (7,000) $2.43
Cancellations ... ... it e (89,000) $2.94
Outstanding at December 31,2005 .. ... .. ... ...t 740,700 $3.33
] V1 - OO 20,000 $2.05
BOICISES . ittt et e e $—
Cancellations ... ..ot e e e (505,700) $3.33
Qutstanding at December 31,2006 ..... ... ... ... . ... ... 255,000 $3.22
Shares exercisable at December 31,2006 .. ... ... .. ... .. ciiiin.. 227.000 $3.28

The aggregate intrinsic value of all option: outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2006 is $0.0.

F-16




ACTION PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

The following tables summarize information about options outstanding at December 31, 2006:

Total Qutstanding Options
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted
Number Contractual Average
Range of Exercise Prices of Shares Life (in years) Exercise Price
S1.25-8200 ... 15,000 33 51.79
$200-33.00 .o 175,000 2.1 $2.96
B300-%5400 .. . e 30,000 2.8 $3.29
B401-8500 ... 23,000 0.2 $4.42
3501 -86.00 ... 6,000 0.8 $5.75
3601 - 3675 .. 6,000 1.8 $6.75
255,000 2.1 $3.22
Exercisable Options
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted
Numnber Contractual Average
Range of Exercise Prices of Shares Life (in years) Exercise Price
S125-82.00 ... e 5,000 0.2 $1.88
$2.01-83.00 ... ... .. 160,000 1.7 $3.00
S301-84.00 ... 30,000 2.8 $3.29
$401-85.00 ... ... e 23,000 0.2 $4.42
S5.01-36.00 ... . e 6,000 0.8 $5.75
5601 - 86,75 ... e 3,000 0.7 $5.75
227,000 1.6 $3.28

On April 24, 2003 the Company announced a warrant distribution to all shareholders of record as of

June 12, 2003. Shareholders were issued one warrant for each share of common stock owned as of the
record date. The warrant entitles the holder to purchase common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per
share. On June 6, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors extended the expiration date of the warrants from
June 9, 2006 to December 31, 2010, All other terms of the warrants remain the same. As of December 31,
2006 approximately 3,272,100 warrants had been issued and 1,566,700 had been exercised.

On October 29, 2004 the Company announced a warrant distribution to all shareholders of record as of
January 7, 2005. Shareholders were issued one warrant for each share of common stock owned as of the
record date. The warrant entitled the holder to purchase common stock at exercise prices of $3.00 and $3.50
per share and expired January 6, 2006. As of the expiration date, a total of 4,636,900 warrants had been
issued and 466,800 had been exercised.

On October 28, 2005 the Company announced a warrant distribution to all shareholders of record as of
January 18, 2006. Shareholders were issued one warrant for each share of commeon stock owned as of the
record date. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share at exercise prices of $3.25 and
$3.75. On January 31, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors extended the expiration dates of the warrants
from January 31, 2007 10 January 31, 2008 at $3.25 per share and from February 1, 2008 to December 31,
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2010 at $3.75 per share. Approximately 5,197,200 warrants were distributed upon effectiveness of a
registration statement filed on July 20, 2006 ind remain outstanding as at December 31, 2006.

Preferred Stock

The Company’s articles of incorporation authorized the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred
stock with such rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.
The Company has issued no shares of preferred stock.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is reflected at par value, and consists of 203,500 shares of commen stock at December 31,
2005.

NOTE 7—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a 401(k) Employee Benefit Plan (the “Plan”), which covers substantially all employees.
Under the terms of the Plan, the Company may make a discretionary contribution to the Plan, as determined
annually by the Company’s Board of Directors. The employer-matching component of the plan was
suspended as of January 1, 2004.

NOTE 8—0OTHER COMMITMENTS AND ZONTINGENCIES
Operating Leases

During 2005, the Company entered into a sioncancellable operating lease for office space, which expired on
July 12, 2006. The Company extended the term through July 12, 2007 at which time it expects to renew the
lease for at least one year at the same rate. In April 2006, we entered into a one year lease for 15,200 square
foot of temporary storage in Qcala primari’y for bulky Curiosity Kits product. During 2006 and 2003,
$200,900 and $116,400, respectively, were charged to operations for rent expense related to operating
leases. Future minimum operating lease payments approximate $119,100 and $75,800 for 2007 and 2008,
respectively.

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings

The Company is engaged in various legal proceedings incidental to its normal business activities, none of
which, individually or in the aggregate, are deemed by management (o be material risk to the Company’s
financial condition,

In November 2006, a final judgment was entered in the Circuit Court of the Eighth Judicial District in
Alachua county, Florida, in the amount of $5.1 million (bearing annual interest at %) in a civil lawsuit
against Kid Galaxy, Inc of Manchester, N1, and its parent company Lung Cheong International Holdings
Ltd., and Timothy L. Young. The defendant has filed notice of an appeal and has a bond to cover the verdict
amount plus nine percent interest for two vears. Qur company’s management cannot predict the outcome of
any ruling by the appellate court nor when it will occur.
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ACTION PRODUCTS INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Licensing and Distribution Agreements

The Company has entered into licensing agreements related to its Jay Jay the Jet Plane, ToddWorld, Talking
Stix and Buzz Aldrin products. The Buzz Aldrin agreement expired in 2005 and was not renewed. These
agreements provide, among other things, for the Company to pay royalties based on a percentage of sales of
these products. Royalty expenses incurred in 2006 and 2005 were $51,000 and $126,600 respectively. For
the year ended December 31, 2006, royalty expenses also included the write off of $210,000 in minimum
royalties paid under the ToddWorld® and Talking Stix™ agreements due to lack of sales through

December 31, 2006.

In December 2001 the Company signed a licensing agreement with Porchlight Entertainment for the rights
to market certain toy lines including a wooden adventure system and die cast metal collection under the Jay
Jay The Jet Plane™ name. The initial term of the agreement expired in December 2004. The agreement has
been renewed through December 2008.

In February 2007, the Company signed an agreement exiting the 2005 exclusive licensing agreement with
Taffy Entertainment, LLC, to develop and distribute various lines of soft toys based on the new preschool
entertainment series ToddWorld®. The term of the original Agreement was for four years expiring on
February 28, 2009, with a two-year extension through February 28, 2011 subject to the Company meeting
certain mipimum royalty requirements during the initial term. As a result of poor sales in 2005 and 2006
with no future expected benefit to the Company, Taffy Entertainment, LLC and our company mutually
agreed, in February, 2007, to terminate the 2005 contract for a final settlement amount of $35,000 plus
remaining licensed product.

Total future minimum royalty payments due for all licensing and distribution agreements are as follows:

December 31,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Future Minimum Royalty Payments .............. $30,000 $40,000 $— @ 53— $—

NOTE S—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2006 the Company paid $41,900 1o Warren Kaplan and $101,300 to Ronel Management Company,
wholly owned by Warren Kaplan, former Chairperson of the Board, and Judith Kaplan, founder and former
Board member, for consulting, financing and investment advisory services.

During 2005 the Company paid $40,600 to Warren Kaplan and $77,200 to Ronel Management Company,

wholly owned by Warren Kaplan, former Chairperson of the Board, and Judith Kaplan, founder and former
Board member, for consulting, financing and investment advisory services.
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About Action Products International Inc.

Action Products international, Incorporated Is a brand-focused, educa-
tional toy & craft products company that designs, manufactures and
markets educational, positive and non-violent brands of consumer
products. We are located in Orlando, FL.

Formed in New York City in 1977 the company was relocated and
reincorporated In Florida In 1980. We were the first, and largest
distributor of educational-orlented toys, childrens books, stationery
and souvenirs to museum gift shops.

We went public on the NASDAQ stock market In 1984, where our stock
has been continually listed; ticker symbol NASDAQ-CM: APII. We
began overseas direct sourcing and importing, and some light and
contract manufacturing.

In 1998 a new direction was taken by a "small step” that became a
"glant leap” for our company. Determined 1o evolve and more broadly
control our products and <hannels of distribution we discontinued the
niche market distribution of products branded and owned by larger
manufacturers, and to seek our own campany fartunes In brands of
our own that could more speclfically address the educational toplcs of
our existing museum markets. This shift allowed us to take those
brands to broader retall markets at our own company’s discretion. 5o,
in 1998 we introduced our first all In-house brand Space Voyagers®,
Since then Action Products has continued to develop and acquire a
core portfollc of proprietary branded toy lines, directed to provide
fun brands that literally educate while they entertain young minds.

TJoday. in our 30th year, Action Products has eight quality brands:
Curlosity Kits®; | Dig™ Excavation Adventures; Jay jay the Jet
Plane Wooden Adventure System™: Play and Store™; Space
Voyagers®; Kidz wWorkshop™; Climb@Tron™, and wWoodkits™,
Products inctude premium wooden toys, actlon figures, play-sets,
activity kits, crafts and various other playthings with strategic empha-
sis on non-viotent, educational and fun topics such as crafts, space,
dinosaurs, science and nature.

The company employs more than 25 people, in its corporate office in
Orlando, FL and distribution center In Ocala, FL.

Currently, more than 2,000 retailers spanning North Amerlca and the
United Kingdom carry Action Products’ toys including:

* Independent Specialty Toy Stores
* Specialty Chains

= Museums, Zoos, & Aquariums

« Attractions & Theme Parks

= Arts and Crafts Retalfers

« Theme/Family Restaurants

* Department 5tores

* Direct Mail/Catalog Houses

* Online Retallers

* Bookstore Retailers
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Action Quick Facts

e Action Products’ flrst Internally devel-

oped proprietary toy brand was
Space Voyagers®, "The Most
Authentic Space Toys on Earth!™",
The Space Voyagers Collector's Serles
Shutitle-Orbiter and Saturn-v Rocket
were Actlon Products’ first branded
toys launched and are still carrled
today.

Action Products’ most popular brand
is Curlosity Kits®, followed by | Dig™
Excavation Adventures.

Action Products’ brands have recelved
more than 40 awards from parent-
ing and child product experts.

The award-winning Jay Jay The et
Plane™ animated serles conslists of 90
eplsodes and appears each week on
more than 300 PBS stations and PBS
KIDS SPROUT Network natlonwlide.
Jay Jay the Jet Plane books are
published by Price Stern Sloan.

All | Dig™ Excavation Adventures
contaln Dinostone® rock, a propri-
etary pebble-sand matrix that Is
dust-free, high-quality and easy-to-
clean up. | DIg Is the most realistic
digglng experlence of any excavation
kit for children,

More than 484,000 Climb-a -Trons™
and more than 1.8 million | DIG Exca-
vation Adventure Kits™ have been
sold.

Our Ocala, FL distributlon center has
been In continuous operation since
1980 and is more than 30,000 square
feet.

In January 2007 Action Products
made its first appearance at the Craft
& Hobby Assoclatlon Convention and
Trade Show. the largest craft and
hobby exhibltion in the world.

S
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Visit the company’s Web sites at: www.apii.com

and www.curiositykits.com.







